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William Sequino, Jr.

Executive Director

October 27, 2014

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Rhode Island Clean
Water Finance Agency (the "Agency") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This year's CAFR is
presented on a comparative basis with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This report has been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"), thereby satisfying applicable federal
and state laws, program regulations, and other Agency agreements.

The data presented is accurate in all material aspects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the Agency. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the Agency's activities have been included. The information contained within this
report is the responsibility of management.

The CAFR is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and Statistical. The Introductory
Section contains an overview of current initiatives and summary financial data. The Financial Section
contains a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section and the Basic Financial Statements.
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative overview and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of MD&A. The Agency's MD&A can be found immediately following
the independent auditor's report. The Statistical Section, which is unaudited, contains selected financial
and demographic information.

Reporting Entity

The Agency is reported as a related organization as it pertains to the State of Rhode Island. Pursuant to its
enabling statute, the Agency also submits its independently audited financial statements to the State’s
Senate Fiscal Offices and House Fiscal Offices, the Office of the Auditor General, the Department of
Administration, and other interested parties. The Agency's Board of Directors requires the Agency to
undergo quarterly agreed-upon procedures that review bank reconciliations, investments, loan receivables,
bonds payable, accrued interest payable, and payroll taxes. These procedures are performed by the Agency's
independent auditors. Also, as an entity receiving federal funding, the Agency is required to undergo an
annual single audit to conform with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and the US
Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governmenis.

The Agency is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of five members, four of whom are members of the
public appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the State Senate. The General Treasurer or
such officer’s designee, who shall be a subordinate within the General Treasurer’s department, shall serve on
the Board of Directors as an ex-officio member. The Agency operates under the direction of the Executive
Director, William Sequino Jr. A list of Agency management and an organization chart for the Agency
follow this transmittal Jetter.

235 Promenade Street, Suite 119, Providence, Rhode Island 02908
401245324430 fox: 401+453-4094

www.ricwfa.com e-mail: info@ricwfa.com



Profile of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency

The Agency was created in 1989 as a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of the State to
administer certain Federal and State programs relating to municipal or community wastewater and drinking
water financial assistance. The Agency administers the revolving loan fund created under Title VI of the
Federal Clean Water Act and its State counterpart. The Agency also administers the revolving loan fund
created under the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended. During fiscal year 2014 the General
Assembly established the Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund for the Agency to administer.

The Agency administers loan programs that provide funding to cities, towns, other governmental units
and certain eligible private entities to finance improvements to drinking water, wastewater infrastructure,
and road and bridge infrastructure. To qualify for a loan with the Agency, the project must be approved by
the Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management (DEM) for wastewater projects, the Department
of Health (DOH) for drinking water projects, and the Department of Transportation (DOT) for road and bridge
projects.

Information Useful in Assessing the Economic Condition of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance
Agency

The Financial Section of this report provides information on the economic condition of the Agency. Please
see Management's Discussion and Analysis in the Financial Section for a presentation of the Agency's
financial condition. To assess the Agency's financial condition, it is essential to understand the Agency's
loan programs.

Loan Programs of the Agency

The Agency administers four loan programs. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF),
primarily finances wastewater infrastructure projects, including the Community Septic Loan Program
(CSSLP), which finances improvements to private homeowner septic systems. The Rhode Island Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fund (RIWPCRF) primarily finances projects that do not meet the requirements
of the federal programs. The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF), primarily finances drinking
water infrastructure projects. The Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund (MRBRF) finances
municipally owned road and bridge infrastructure. The Agency lends to cities, towns, other governmental
units such as water and sewer authorities, and private water system operators. To fund its operations, the
Agency charges an administrative fee of 0.5% of the principal outstanding per year on Clean Water, Drinking
Water and Municipal Road and Bridge loans.

Clean Water Program

The Clean Water SRF is a subsidized loan program for local governmental units to finance wastewater
infrastructure projects. In order for the project to be eligible for funding, the project must be on the
Department of Environmental Management’s Project Priority List (PPL) and have a Certificate of Approval
(CA) from DEM. The PPL is updated on an annual basis. Since the inception of the CWSRF, the Agency has
closed over $1.118 billion in loans to municipalities, Narragansett Bay Commission and Providence Water
Supply Board. The CWSRF program provides a subsidy to its borrowers. Currently, the standard loan offer
is for a term of up to twenty years at a subsidized loan rate of 66 2/3% of the borrower’s market rate.
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Clean Water Program (Continued)

The Community Septic Loan Program (CSSLP) provides loans to Rhode Island communities to assist
homeowners in repairing or replacing a failed or failing septic systems. The Agency makes zero
interest rate loans to communities. Loans made by the communities to homeowners are secured through a
lien on the property. This program allows municipalities to provide access to capital for home septic repairs
or replacement at a subsidized interest rate. Currently, the standard loan offer is for a term of 10 years at a
subsidized loan rate of 2% to the homeowners. The Agency has made 39 CSSLP loans totaling $10.9 million
since the inception of the program.

Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

The Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (RIWPCRF) receives state capital contributions
before the funds are transferred to the CWSRF or DWSRF programs. The Agency has the authority to use the
funds to make loans, issue bonds, and receive interest earnings or other capital from public or private sources.
The Fund has been used to finance projects not meeting the requirements of the federal SRF programs. To
date the Agency has made nine loans totaling over $58 million out of this fund.

Drinking Water Program

The Drinking Water SRF supports protection of public health by ensuring that all Rhode Island Public
Water Suppliers have the necessary technical, financing, and managerial capacity to maintain compliance
with the current and foreseeable Safe Drinking Water Act requirements. The DWSRF projects typically
involve construction and, or, rehabilitation of drinking water treatment plants, replacement of aging water
mains and the construction of drinking water storage facilities. Since the inception of the DWSRF, the
Agency has closed over $357 million in loans to municipalities, and publicly and privately organized water
suppliers. The program promotes the completion of cost-effective projects that maximize protection of public
health. Currently, the standard loan offer is for aterm of up to 20 years at a subsidized loan rate of 75% of
the borrower's market rate.

Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund

The Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund (MRBRF) is a subsidized loan program to provide
municipalities with low-cost financial assistance for road and bridge infrastructure projects. In order for a
project to be eligible for funding, the project must be on the Department of Transportation Project Priority List
(PPL). The PPL is updated on an annual basis. The MRBRF closed nine loans totaling over $10 million
during early fiscal 2015. Currently, the standard loan offer is for a term up to twenty years at a subsidized loan
rate of 66 2/3% of the borrower's market rate.

Interim Loans

The Agency makes funds available to eligible projects in both the CWSRF and DWSRF programs.
Borrowers can enter into a short term loan to enable projects to proceed prior to the Agency's bond sale.
The Agency is capable of funding a project from 30 days to 1 year prior to a bond sale by extending the
use of program equity funds as a source of capital. The interest is accrued monthly on the basis of the
balance drawn on the construction account.
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Leveraged Financing Model

The Agency's SRF loan programs receive funding from the EPA in the form of annual grants, supplemented by
state matching funds and the repayment of funds from previous borrowers ("SRF Program Funds"). The
Agency's SRF Programs utilize a "leveraged" financing model, under which federal grants and state matching
grants are used as a source of security for revenue bonds ("SRF Bonds") issued by the Agency. The proceeds
from the SRF bonds are used to fund loans to eligible borrowers for eligible project costs. The leveraged
structure of the Agency's program permits the Agency to substantially increase the amounts available to fund
eligible project costs. Each federal grant and associated state matching grant dollar contributed to the program
results in at least three to four dollars of project cost financing while assuring the perpetual nature of the
revolving fund.

The Agency's lending and bond issuance programs are structured in such a way as to ensure adequate cash
flows to fund its loans and to repay its bonds to maturity. The Agency's bonds are secured by a
combination of pledged sources which include borrower loan repayments, and interest earnings on pledged
SRF Program Funds.

Since loan repayments are the primary source of revenue for the Agency's debt service payments, the credit
quality of the loan portfolio is important. The Agency loans are secured by either a general obligation pledge
of the borrowers, or by a revenue pledge payable from water and wastewater revenues of the related borrowers.
The Agency has a large, diverse pool of borrowers with a sound credit quality.

The Agency applies its SRF Program Funds to fund either direct loans or federal direct loans to ehglble
borrowers, which are then pledged as a source of payment and security for the SRF Bonds.

Under the pledged direct loan approach, the Agency pledges direct loans and federal direct loans that it has
made from its SRF Program Funds to eligible borrowers for water pollution abatement and drinking water
projects. The Agency applies the interest payments on these Pledged Direct Loans to pay a portion of
the debt service on the related series of SRF Bonds. Principal payments on the Pledged Direct Loans are
pledged as further security for the related series of SRF Bonds.

In the past, the Agency has applied a portion of its SRF Program Funds to establish reserve funds to
secure a series of its SRF Bonds. Those investment earnings are then applied to pay a portion of the debt
service on the related SRF Bonds, thereby supplementing the loan repayment obligations of the borrowers of
the Leveraged Loans funded by such SRF Bonds. As of June 30, 2014, the Agency has $128 million in
SRF reserve funds invested in guaranteed investment contracts (GIC) and US Treasury and Municipal Bonds.

The Agency's SRF bonds are rated AAA by Fitch and Standard and Poor's. The SRF bonds issued through
2009 were rated Aaa by Moody's.

Federal Capitalization Grants and State Matching Funds
In order to provide security for its SRF bonds, the Agency pledges the loan interest payments from loans
that are funded with federal and state capitalization grants. The Agency has received total combined federal

and state support of over $487 million to date which has provided funding for nearly $1.5 billion in clean water
and drinking water construction projects.
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Federal Capitalization Grants and State Matching Funds (Continued)

The Agency's federal capitalization grant awards have included requirements to provide defined levels of
subsidization (i.e., principal forgiveness). The Agency has issued over $35 million in principal forgiveness
loans combined in both the Clean Water SRF and the Drinking Water SRF. The Agency recognizes principal
forgiveness as an expense as the related loans are repaid. To date the Agency has forgiven $2,919,814 in loans
in both programs.

Rhode Island chose to apply principal forgiveness funds to projects designated as "green" by the Department of
Environmental Management or the Department of Health first and then to the borrowers in the pool on a pro-
rata basis.

Long Term Financial Planning

Relative to its long-term financial position, one of the most important issues facing the Agency is the status
of future federal support for the CWSRF and DWSREF.

If federal funding declines, the Agency's ability to maintain or increase its lending activities will be
limited without additional state support. While this does not affect the financial health of the Agency,
it will affect the CWSRF and DWSRF programs administered by the Agency. The Agency's financial
capacity is not adequate to fund all those projects currently approved by DEM and DOH, however, future
growth in capacity of the Agency is dependent on additional state support and or federal appropriations to
the State Revolving Fund programs, shown in Note 5 of the Agency's Financial Statements, as
"Capitalization Grants."

Economic Factors Affecting the Agency

As aresult of the Agency's highly-structured approach to lending and bonding, the finances of the Agency
have not been dramatically affected by recent national economic stress. Although there are many
current credit pressures affecting our borrowers, primarily municipalities and utilities in Rhode Island,
the projects financed are oriented to water supply and wastewater treatment which are primarily supported by
water and sewer enterprise systems and their own user-fee or rate-based revenue. As such, they are
somewhat removed from the general fiscal and expenditure pressures that can face a municipal
government. Furthermore, the Agency benefits from a diversified pool of borrowers which makes it less
affected by significant deterioration of any single borrower.

Demand for Agency loans in the Clean Water SRF has been very high and is starting to exceed the Agency’s
annual capacity. While demand in the Drinking Water SRF was slow during fiscal 2014, we expect an
increase in activity during fiscal 2015. Demand on the Municipal Road and Bridge program for 2014 was
strong for its first year and the Agency expects a moderate increase in demand for fiscal 2015. DEM’s
Project Priority List had over $1.8 billion in Clean Water projects listed and the Agency funded $90 million
during fiscal 2014. DOH’s Project Priority List had over $72 million in Drinking Water projects and the
Agency funded $1.6 million during fiscal 2014. DOT’s Project Priority List had over $19 million in
Municipal Road and Bridge projects and the Agency funded over $10 million in early fiscal 2015. Demand
for the Agency's lending programs is expected to remain strong as communities work to meet tightening
environmental standards and maintain an aging infrastructure.



Economic Factors Affecting the Agency (Continued)

The current record low interest rate environment has greatly reduced the value of the subsidization
resulting from the below market rate being provided to the Agency's borrowers. However, the Agency
expects to continue to award additional subsidization in the form of principal forgiveness to its eligible
borrowers.

While economic factors have not affected the Agency's current financial position, macroeconomic
stresses pose risks to the Agency's long-term investment portfolio. Over the past few years, a number of
institutions providing guaranteed investment contracts (GICs) to the Agency have experienced downgrades
by various rating agencies. These actions did not result in a downgrade to the Agency as the Agency has
multiple providers which reduce concentration risk and contract provisions for collateralization upon credit
downgrades. At this time, these factors have had no real effect on the Agency, as the overall credit
quality of the Agency's investment portfolio remains strong.

The Agency has been actively managing its GIC portfolio and will continue to take steps to mitigate
risks as necessary while preserving the overall cash flows of the program. The Agency has employed a
number of mitigation strategies during recent fiscal years such as terminating GICs and receiving portfolios
comprised of U.S. Agency securities and other highly rated state municipal bonds that replace the cash
flows of the original GICs. Additionally, the Agency shifted its program model from a reserve model
structure to a hybrid model structure which uses the federal grant funds that would have been pledged as
reserves to originate loans that are pledged to the bonds.

Independent Audit

The Agency's independent auditors, Cayer Caccia LLP, have performed an independent audit of the Agency
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. The independent auditor's report is located at the front
of the Financial Section of this report.

The Agency prepares these financial statements and is responsible for the completeness and reliability of
the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the
Agency has established an internal control framework that is designed to protect the Agency's assets from
loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficiently reliable information for the preparation of the Agency's
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The Agency's framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free
from material misstatements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CPAMST

Donna T. Caccia
CPA, MST, CFP™

To the Board of Directors
Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
Providence, Rhode Island

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance
Agency (the Agency), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
- statements. ’

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Cayer Caccia, LLP | Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants
931 Jefferson Boulevard, Suite 2007, Warwick, RI 02886 | Phone: (401) 732-8900 | Fax: (401) 732-8920 | www.cayercaccia.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency as of June 30, 2014 and
2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and, cash flows thereof for the years then ended’in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2014, the Agency adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, on pages 4 through 14 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. \We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency's basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining financial statements, schedule of travel and entertainment expenses, and
statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining financial statements and schedule of travel and entertainment expenses are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements and schedule of travel
and entertainment expenses are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
27, 2014, on our consideration of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Rhode
Island Clean Water Finance Agency's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

WC&MA.&,LLP

October 27, 2014



Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency (the “Agency”’) has the pleasure to offer readers
of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Agency for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This discussion and analysis is designed to
assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to identify any
significant changes in financial position. The Agency encourages readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements as a whole.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - FISCAL YEAR 2014:

The Agency's total assets at June 30, 2014 were $1,530,141,882, which is an
increase of $51,432,805 or 3% over June 30, 2013.

The Agency’'s operating revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 were
$36,651,593, which is an increase of $2,502,992 or 7% over the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.

The Agency’s operating expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 were
$37,259,947 which is an increase of $1,119,662 or 3% over the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.

The Agency's total net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was
$521,361,192, which is an increase of $33,101,376 or 7% over the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.

In fiscal year 2014, the Agency continued to receive capitalization grants from the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for both the Clean Water and Drinking Water
SRF programs. The Agency received $6 million for the Clean Water SRF and $15.5
million for the Drinking Water SRF. The continued capitalization of the Agency,
combined with the Agency's access to the bond market, has allowed the Agency to
provide funding to all qualified borrowers.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - FISCAL YEAR 2013:

The Agency's total assets at June 30, 2013 were $1,478,709,077, which is an
increase of $117,725,728 or 9% over June 30, 2012.

The Agency's operating revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 were
$34,148,601, which is a decrease of $3,459,602 or 9% below the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012.

The Agency's operating expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 were
$36,140,285 which is an increase of $888,803 or 3% over the fiscal year ended June
30, 2012.

The Agency's total net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was
$488,259,816, which is an increase of $28,509,495 or 6% over the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012.



Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - FISCAL YEAR 2013 (Continued):

In fiscal year 2013, the Agency continued to receive capitalization grants from the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for both the Clean Water and Drinking Water
SRF programs. The Agency received $9.6 million for the Clean Water SRF and
$17.3 million for the Drinking Water SRF. The continued capitalization of the Agency,
combined with the Agency's access to the bond market, has allowed the Agency to
provide funding to all qualified borrowers.

INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Agency had an unrealized gain of
$191,755 on investments. The gain was mostly due to 40% of the Agency's
investment portfolio, which is comprised of fixed income securities, the price of
which will fluctuate inversely with the general level of interest rates. Because
interest rates remained relatively consistent between June 30, 2013 and June 30,
2014, the fair value of these investments only increased slightly.

The fact that interest rates are still at historic lows has limited qualifying
investment alternatives for existing cash, bond proceeds and grant funds. The
interest rates on secured long-term investments required by the Agency financing
model in the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) and Drinking Water
State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) may subject those programs to additional
investment interest rate risk. Lower investment interest rates also reduce the
Agency's loan capacity, the dollars available to fund new loans, while maintaining
the same rate of loan interest subsidy.

The Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency seeks investments that offer
strong security to bondholders. Permitted investments are reviewed in the
context of the current market to provide needed cash flows while meeting the
Agency's rating criteria. Downgrade and collateral provisions are key criteria for
each investment. Agency management is proactive in regularly monitoring
investments and investment agreement providers and has taken swift action to
address investment agreement provider downgrades.

Over the past several years, the rating downgrades of firms that have provided
Guaranteed Investment Contracts (GICs) have presented significant challenges
for issuers that historically utilized GICs in their investment portfolios. The
Agency may request a return of its GIC investment upon rating trigger
requirements whenever permitted or by provider agreement. The first priority of
the Agency’s reinvestment strategy is preservation of principal or safety, followed
by liquidity, and finally yield. In most cases, the current investment alternatives
do not match the yields on the liquidated investments and in some cases, a cash
contribution may be required to match prior cash flows at available investment
yields.



Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
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INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS (Continued):

Due to low investment interest rates, the Agency has decided to put Federal
Capitalization Grants into federal direct loans instead of funding a LIST Fund
(Local Interest Subsidy Trust). This helps the Agency because it reduces the
amount of bonds the Agency would have to issue, thus reducing Agency’s debt
and provides a better rate of return than the Agency could have received if it
invested the funds in a LIST investment, therefore increasing the Agency's
revenue.

2014 FISCAL SUMMARY:

During fiscal 2014 the Agency issued $55,925,000 in new debt in the Clean Water SRF and
$8,225,000 in the Agency Operating Account. The Agency closed a total of $108,725,000 of new
loans consisting of $90,900,000 in the Clean Water SRF to seven borrowers, $1,600,000 in the
Drinking Water SRF to two borrowers, $8,000,000 in Administrative loans to two borrowers and
one conduit issue for $8,225,000. The detail of the Agency's financing for fiscal 2014 was as

follows:

August 1, 2013, the Agency issued a CSSLP loan to the Town of Scituate in the
amount of $300,000.

August 5, 2013, the Agency issued a Drinking Water Direct Loan to the East
Smithfield Water District in the amount of $600,000.

August 22, 2013, the Agency issued a Drinking Water Direct Loan to the
Greenville Water District in the amount of $1,000,000.

September 3, 2013, the Agency issued an $8,225,000 Conduit Bond Issue to the
Town of Coventry. This bond issue/loan financed construction of the Fast Track
Sewer Interceptor Project Sandy Bottom Pump Station along with the refinancing
of the Tiogue Avenue Sewer Extension Project.

March 6, 2014, the Agency issued $55,925,000 in bonds which had a
$6,323,260.25 net premium. The Agency also added $8,596,800 of the 2013
federal capitalization grants and $1,791,000 of the associated state matching
funds. The Agency used $17,983,481.37 of revolved federal and state dollars to
combine with the funds above to create a $90,619,541.62 pool of funds. The
Agency incurred $619,541.62 in expenses to close the Agency bond issue which
left $90,000,000 to fund the following loans:

Cranston $18,000,000
NBC 45,000,000
Warwick 7,000,000
Woonsocket 20,000,000

$90,000,000
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2014 FISCAL SUMMARY (Continued):

e April 10, 2014, the Agency issued an Admin / Operating Loan to the Town of
North Kingstown in the amount of $6,000,000.

e April 21, 2014, the Agency issued a CSSLP loan to the Town of Westerly in the
amount of $300,000.

e May 1, 2014, the Agency issued an Admin / Operating Loan to the Town of
Bristol in the amount of $2,000,000.

e June 17, 2014, the Agency issued a CSSLP loan to the Town of North Kingstown
in the amount of $300,000.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Agency’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied on an accrual basis. Under the
accrual basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses are
recognized in the period in which they are incurred. The three basic financial statements
presented within the financial statements are:

Statement of Net Position — This statement presents information regarding the Agency’s assets,
liabilities and net position. Net position represents the total amount of assets plus deferred
outflows of resources less the total liabilities. The statement of net position classifies assets,
liabilities and net position as current, non-current and restricted.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — This statement presents the
Agency’s operating revenues, operating expenses, nonoperating revenues, and changes in net
position for the fiscal years.

Statement of Cash Flows — The Agency’s statement of cash flows is presented on the direct
method of reporting, which reflects cash flows from operating, non-capital financing, capital and
investing activities.




Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
Management’s Discussionh and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

NET POSITION

The Agency’s net position at June 30, 2014 was $521,361,192, which is an increase of
$33,101,376 or 7% over June 30, 2013. Components of the Agency’s statement of net position

was as follows at June 30:

Other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted
Total net position

2014

2013

2012

$1,530,061,696

80,186

$1,478,683,573

25,504

$1,360,953,254

30,095

1,530,141,882

1,478,709,077

1,360,983,349

6,812,889 7,771,775 4,008,411
217,094,499 225,321,412 198,300,115
798,499,080 772,899,624 706,941,324

1,015,693,679 998,221,036 905,241,439
80,186 25,504 30,095
477,557,093 448,629,618 425,023,877
43,723,913 39,604,694 34,696,349

$ 521,361,192

$ 488,259,816

$ 459,750,321
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

NET POSITION (Continued)

June 30, 2014.

The increases noted above in the Agency’s total assets and liabilities are the confirmation of the
Agency's steady growth. The 2014 increase results from the Agency closing an $8.225 million
Conduit issue in September and a $55.925 million Clean Water bond issue in March, plus two
Admin / Operating loans totaling $8 million along with several smaller loans issued during fiscal
year 2014. Total assets increased by 3% from $1,478,709,077 at June 30, 2013 to
$1,530,141,882 at June 30, 2014. Current liabilities decreased from $225,321,412 at June 30,
2013 to $217,094,499 or 4% at June 30, 2014. The growth over the past year also relates to
non-current liabilities totaling $798,499,080 which is an increase of $25,599,456 or 3% over June
30, 2013. The increases noted in unrestricted assets, restricted assets and non-current liabilities
are related to the increase level of loan activity through the issuance of bonds. The Agency
closed over $108 million in loans during 2014 and over $151 million during 2013. The decrease
in loan activity was due to a decrease in loans issued in the Agency’s Drinking Water SRF.

June 30, 2013:

The 2013 increase in the Agency's assets and liabilities is the result of the Agency closing a
$35.78 million Drinking Water bond issue in May 2013 and a $52.07 million Clean Water bond
issue in June 2013, along with several smaller loans that were issued during fiscal year 2013.
Total assets increased by 9% from $1,360,983,349 at June 30, 2012 to $1,478,709,077 at June
30, 2013. Current liabilities increased from $198,300,115 at June 30, 2012 to $225,321,412 or
14% at June 30, 2013. The growth over the past year also relates to non-current liabilities
totaling $772,899,624 which is an increase of $65,958,300 or 9% over June 30, 2012. The
increases noted in unrestricted assets, restricted assets and non-current liabilities are related to
the increased level of loan activity through the issuance of bonds.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued):

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Agency’s change in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was $33,101,376 or
an increase of 7%. There was an increase of $3,208,551 in the federal capitalization grants due
to an increase in construction draws by borrowers who had federal direct loans. There was also

an increase in interest income (due to new loans) at June 30, 2014.

The Agency's change in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was $28,509,495 or
an increase of 6%. There was an increase of $2,936,917 in the federal capitalization grants due
to an increase in construction draws by borrowers who had federal direct loans. There was also

an increase in interest income (due to new loans) at June 30, 2013.

Interest income — loans
Investment income
Grant income - DEM & DOH

Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

Interest expense

Other operating expenses:
Consulting fees: DEM & DOH
Loan principal forgiveness
General administration

Professional fees
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Grant income - federal and state

Increase in net position

Net position, beginning of year, as

restated

Net position, end of year

2014 2013 2012
$ 23,738,021 $ 21,885,290 $ 20,243,192
4,215,386 2,782,770 8,970,388
3,169,330 3,574,257 3,093,664
5,528,356 5,906,284 5,300,959
36,651,593 34,148,601 37,608,203
30,732,606 28,153,557 29,183,407
3,545,965 3,574,257 3,093,664
1,058,604 894,241 803,813
1,495,923 3,128,167 1,748,490
426,849 390,063 422,108
37,259,947 36,140,285 35,251,482
(608,354) (1,991,684) 2,356,721
33,709,730 30,501,179 27,564,262
33,101,376 28,509,495 29,920,983
488,259,816 459,750,321 429,829,338
$521,361,192 $488,259,816 $459,750,321

10



Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued):

As graphically portrayed below, the increase in interest income-loans is related to the growth in
the Agency’s portfolio. Interest income was $23,738,021 at June 30, 2014 an increase of 8%
over June 30, 2013. Interest income was $21,885,290 at June 30, 2013 an increase of 8% over
June 30, 2012.

INVESTMENT INCOME — LOANS AND INVESTMENTS

525,000,000
$20,000,000
515,000,000 ® Interest income - foans
510,000,000 ® investment income
$5,000,000
$-

As graphically shown above and discussed earlier, investment income increased to $4,215,886 at
June 30, 2014 from $2,782,770 at June 30, 2013 representing a 51% increase. The majority of
this increase was due to the $2,176,329 increase in the unrealized gains of the Agency's
investments offset by a decrease in the Agency’s total investments from $108,723,144 at June
30, 2013 to $98,409,206 at June 30, 2014,

There was a decrease in investment income from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2013 of

$6,187,618 due mainly to the decrease in the Agency's total investments of $26,312,455 as well
as the decrease in the fair market value of the Agency's investments of $1,984,574.

11
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued):

Total net position at June 30, 2014 was $521,361,192 which was an increase of 7% over fiscal
year June 30, 2013.

Total net position at June 30, 2013 was $488,259,816 which was an increase of 6% over fiscal
year June 30, 2012,

Total net position, end of year

$540,000,000 +*

$520,000,000

$500,000,000

$480,000,000 ® Total net position, end of year

$460,000,000

$440,000,000

$420,000,000 TR TS
2014 2013 2012

Interest expense was $30,732,606 at June 30, 2014 a 9% increase from fiscal year 2013. The
majority of the increase was due to the Agency closing two bond issues late in the tast quarter of
the Agency’s fiscal year 2013. Operating expenses were $37,259,947 at June 30, 2014 a 3%
increase over June 30, 2013. The Agency saw a large decrease in bond issuance costs during
2014 as compared to 2013. This was a result of the Agency closing four bond issues, two
refunding issues and two pooled issues in 2013 as compared to one pooled issue during 2014.
The Agency's principal forgiveness expense is increasing from 2013 and will continue to increase
as the loans continue to mature and additional loans are added annually.

Interest expense was $28,153,557 at June 30, 2013 a 4% decrease from fiscal year 2012. The
majority of the decrease was due to the Agency closing two bond issues late in the last quarter of
the Agency's fiscal year 2013. Operating expenses were $36,140,285 at June 30, 2013 a 3%
increase over June 30, 2012. The Agency saw a large increase in bond issuance costs during
2013 as compared to 2012. This was a result of the Agency closing four bond issues, two
refunding issues and two pooled issues in 2013 as compared to two pooled issues during 2012.

12
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued):

INTEREST EXPENSE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

40,000,000 7~
35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000

20,000,000 B Interest expense

15,000,000 B Operating expenses

10,000,000
5,000,000

e
T T T T

2014 2013 2012

BUDGETARY RESULTS:

The Agency prepares an annual operating budget (approved by the Agency’s Board of Directors)
that is used as a management tool for tracking the various revenues and expenses. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Agency realized a positive budgetary variance related to
its administrative expenses.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

The Agency administers the Water Pollution Control and the Rhode Island Water Pollution
Control revolving loan funds created under Title VI of the Federal Clean Water Act and its State
counterpart which is known as the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF). The Agency
also administers the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) created under the Federal
Safe Drinking Water Act amendments of 1996. The Agency has established a Community Septic
System Loan Program (CSSLP) as part of the Federal Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The
Agency also provides conduit loans to municipalities for various water and wastewater system
improvements. The Agency has a Rhode Island Zero Interest Loan Fund (RIZILF) which has
made 59 loans totaling $255 million. The Agency has established a Sewer Tie In Loan Fund
(STILF) under the RIWPCRF.

At June 30, 2014, the Agency had $774,122,000 of bond indebtedness, an increase of 4% from

the $746,959,000 outstanding at June 30, 2013. Detailed information related to the Agency's
debt is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.
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The Agency (Board of Directors and Staff) is proud of the confidence placed in the Agency by the
three nationally recognized rating services who continue to rate Agency Bonds as follows:

Fitch ..o AAA
Standard & Poor's......... AAA
Moody's.......cccoovirrrinnns Aaa (bonds issued through 2009)

The Agency has experienced growth in all aspects of its operations and the future of the Agency
continues in a positive direction.

The Agency's Board of Directors voted to designate all net assets in excess of the Agency’s
annual operating budget for interim, short-term and long-term financing to qualified borrowers.

The Agency's investments are monitored monthly, including GIC contract providers, credit
ratings, and maturity dates. The Agency continues to remain pro-active by engaging an
Independent Audit firm to conduct quarterly agreed-upon financial procedures.

Principal Forgiveness Loans — These are loans the Agency is required to make by EPA. Starting
with the 2009 ARRA Capitalization Grants for Clean Water and Drinking Water Programs, EPA
requires that a certain percentage of each Capitalization Grant be given to the Agency's
borrowers as Principal Forgiveness Loans. The Agency awards the principal forgiveness over
the life of the borrower’s loan. As of June 30, 2014 the Agency made a total of $35,594,560 of
Principal Forgiveness Loans and has forgiven $2,919,814. :

FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE OPERATIONS:

1. During fiscal 2014 the Agency received state funds to establish the Municipal Road and
Bridge Revolving Fund. The state has budgeted $5.0 million for fiscal 2015 but has not
appropriated any additional funds after fiscal 2015.

2. Guaranteed investment contract provider ratings are shown in Note 2 and are stated as of

June 30, 2014. Ratings during these uncertain times are subject to change. Readers are
encouraged to go to Moody's and S&P’s websites to get the most recent ratings.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION:

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s financial activity for
fiscal year 2014. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency, 235 Promenade Street, Suite 119,
Providence, Rhode Island 02908, telephone number (401) 453-4430 or email us at
info@ricwfa.com.
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER

FINANCE AGENCY

BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Basic Financial Statements include:

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that
is essential to a user's understanding of the basic financial statements.




RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash equivalents and investments:
Unrestricted:
Cash EQUIVAIENTS .........oooiii ettt st e st st e reneeearees $ 38025075 $ 33211928
Total unrestricted cash equivalents ....................ccccocooeceieiiiiecvcviecececern e 38,025,075 33,211,928
Restricted:
Cash EQUIVAIENTS ..ottt et e st st e sr e s e e sseneerene s 211,815,885 203,978,510
INVESIMENTS ....coiiiiiiiii ettt s e st ee e et eesare s sreesanesrneesanenaa 98,409,206 108,723,144
Total restricted cash equivalents and investments .....................ccccoveuvevvnen.... 310,225,091 312,701,654
Restricted 10anS r8CRIVADIE .........cc.eeiiiiiiici et eveereere e e e s enenaes 62,936,768 57,177,078
Accrued interest receivable:
o 1o - J O OO TRRRRRPOON 7,977,399 7,310,071
INVESTMENTS ..ot ee st e e e et e s e eneesateeseee st e enteennnes 1,043,324 1,182,309
AcCCoUNtS receiVable — SEIVICE TEES .......oivvv et re e ee s e e raes 1,549,701 1,422,816
Prepaid expenses and other receivables ... 129,570 185,354
TOLAl CUITENT @SSELS .........ccooeeiiveioieeceec ettt st e et ee et ereeeeeneenans 421,886,928 413,191,210
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted 08NS TECEIVADIE ...........c.cceiieerice ettt s e st eete e et e s e s e e see e 1.108.174,768 1,065,492,363
TOtal NONCUITENT ASSELS ............c..ccviiviveiciceeeee et et vt teeeee s et ees s reeare e e _1.108,174.768 1,065,492,363
Capital assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation .............c.ccccevvvvcvvevieeceeennan, 80,186 25,504
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt sttt et s a st e et s e et e et seesteeeneasan _1.530,141,882 1,478,709.077
Deferred OUTIOWS Of FESOUICES..................cccoociveuiiieeeeeee oo eeeeseeeee e seeeseeereeeessonns 6,812,889 7771.775
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Project COSIS PAYADIE .......ooviiiei e e e e e e ee e e e oot 166,974,448 180,252,850
BONAS PAYADIG.....c..oiiiciiiiriiei ettt e e et s st et e e e et ere e e eereanens 40,659,000 36,987,000
Accrued INterest PAYabIE...........c.ccvvceierececceeee et 9,237,085 7,521,978
Accounts payable and accruet EXPENSES........cc.cvueerrieiireieieiie et ss e e e eessenes 223,966 559,684
Total cUrrent abilities ........................ccooeviiiiniiiesciee et eeeeeeere e eeeresreeee s seans 217,094,499 225,321,412
Noncurrent liabilities: :
Bonds payable, Net of CUMTENt POTtION ...........cooviivieeieir et ee e e v e e ee e e s onas 796,963,084 771,420,512
Accrued arbitrage rebate ...........cvecveiicic e st 1,535,996 1.479.112
Total noncurrent labilities........................c..coocovuveroeeeceeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeee e ees s 798,499,080 772,899,624
TOTAL LIABILITIES .........ocoo ettt eenae et s eeseneesaneesseeneasan 1.015,593,579 998,221,036
NET POSITION
Net investment in Capital SSEIS.........c.ocuiiiiiiiii et e e e 80,186 25,504
RESIACIEA ...t et s et s e e eeestease s e ereeseeesteersan 477,557,093 448,629,618
UNPESIMCIEM ...ttt e e v e st et e et e eeeeneteeseeeeetssaresreesens 43,723913 39,604,694
TOTAL NET POSITION ............oooovoveeieeiee et eeeeeees e e e ses st s anes $ 521,361,192 $ 488,259,816

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Operating revenues:

INVESTMENE INCOME ..ottt sttt e e e e ereeaee e et e s eaneseeannees $ 4215886 $ 2,782,770

INEEreSt INCOME = [OANS ......cccviecriiree e abe s st e et e e e eeeesnenes 23,738,021 21,885,290

Grant iNCOME - OPEratiNG........cccovevriiririe it st e st be b ans 3,169,330 3,574,257

SIVICE FEES. ..o i veerte sttt st e e e steeteesbesee e bes srtesrnsstesbe st e steeeeeneeens 4,511,793 4,159,174

Direct 10an fEeS aNd OthET .......coovvicee ettt e e e aaeeres 0 249,302

Loan origination fEES ..........ccviiiierieeii et e 1,016,563 1.497.808

Total 0pPerating reVenUES................ccccuviivieeeeeeiieieeeeinte ettt 36,651,593 34,148,601
Operating expenses:

INEEIESE EXPENSE ..o it sb s s vt e e et seeete et e sree st e atenans 30,732,606 28,153,557

Consulting fees - D.EIM and D.O.H........ccooiiviiiiceeeeeecee et sneee e 3,645,965 3,574,257

EMPIOYEE EXPENSE ...ooviii e cir et ste et e e s ettt st eseaeeteeeeteeneeeesneeeaneen 744,882 701,916

INSUFANCE BXPENSE ...c.uviiiciiiiieseeeeeceer et e eee s tsresr e re st esesees et eseneeeanereeeetssaesesessessesesssress 13,871 13,576

LEGAI TEES ...ttt et et et e reeeenenneeresteas 149,016 117,712

Lo@an PrinCipal fOrgiIVENESS.......ccoiviiiie ittt et eeee e e s eseeensreeenseesesesesseees 1,058,604 894,241

BON iSSUANCE COSES ....uviiiiicii ettt e e s e seeeeeveeeabevanteennes 580,952 2,275,871

OffiCE BXPENSE ..ot ettt ettt st e n e reeseeneneneneen 111,320 93,820

Accounting AN AUAILING ......oovieeeeieeecce ettt et e e e s et eateea st e s s eesresesesssres 52,918 42,531

Depreciation EXPENSE.........covvreriirecririee ettt e e st s ereereeebeeneas 9,027 7,946

TTUSTEE/DANK FEES ..ottt e e e e e e s e seeeeeeesressssnesetees 181,891 182,298

ProOmMOtIONAl EXPENSES .....cvvieeeiiieie ettt tte st e s e e e esreeesenreessassiresesssnsssessene s 7,483 9,640

FIiNancial @dViSOr fEES..........ccviiiceeiiciec ittt ettt e er e e st e aseeeeeseeneeeeresaens 43,024 47,522

DUES aNd SUDSCHPLIONS ....eeiieeiceeict et ttee et e et st sseeseeeaeesesestssessesesesres e 9,441 8,510

SEIMINGAIS ...veitii ettt ste st e e et e et e e eseestereneeesaaeesreestesseesresreesrsesteessene 1,923 1,875

BUSINESS aNd traVEI @XPENSE ......cocueicriiiiieeeeeeee et et ee e eeeeessesesvesesiseresessesveee e e 10,233 10,128

MiISCEIIANEOUS BXPENSE ........ccviicriiricirie ettt ee et et eneseeseesneresrens 6.791 4,885

Total OPerating EXPENSES .............cccceieeiiriireeeeeiieive et eeeeseeseseeee e ere e ereaessseenes 37,259,947 36,140,285
OPErating JOSS ......coueeiiiiie ettt s e et e et e et et e st asae e eeeaes (608,354) (1,991,684)
Nonoperating revenue:

Grant iNCOME - NONOPEIAtING..........coivierieeiiceict ettt et ssts e ses e e e e ss e e s e ssres 33,709,730 30,501,179
Change iN NEEPOSIION............coviieeicecce et e e et eee e s e e e e ereere s ot e et e e e oo 33,101,376 28,509,495
Net position, beginning of the year, as restated...................c...c...cocooovvervevcecrereearnnn. 488,259,816 459,750,321
Net position, end of the Year ....................ccccooeivieeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeseece e e e se e $ 521,361,192  $488,259,816

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts for 10an repPayMeENtS.........cccvevviiiiiiiieie et s ene
Cash receipts for operating grants ..o
Cash receipts for Ioan origination fEES ...........cooccuieciiiiv e
Cash receipts for SErviCe fEES ........ccvviiriiriieceeee et e e
Cash receipts for direct loan fees and other............c..ccoooeeeeeiiivi e
Cash payments for loan disbursement activities ............cccevvveveiiiiiiceee e
Cash payments t0 SUPPHEIS ......cccevcviirieriiee ettt ee et esetesseestees
Cash payments t0 BMPIOYEES ...........c.cciiviiirecninrr st e s s

Net cash used for operating activities.....................ooeeevcivineeeeeeeeeereeereeeesee e

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of property and €QUIDMENT..............ocoociiiiieiee et eeeceeeeeese e e eeeeaee s

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Proceeds from bond issuance, net of refunding..........c..ccocooveiceiceic s s
Repayment of bond prinCiPal.............ccocoiiimnnininicreeeeseee ettt e eae s
Amount deposited to refunding ESCIOW ..........cccoviivieieiciceceeeeeeeeveer e e e see e e e eereseans
Nonoperating grants reCEIVEA .........ccvviviiieiiiiicei et see e ee e oo
Interest paid ON reVENUE DONAS.........ccoviiiiiiieecieec et ete s e s erens
BONG ISSUANCE COSES ......cccoiriiiiiiiieriseieitseere ettt se st et e e e sasesses e ssesseseensas
Repayment of bond anticipation NOIES ...........c.ceeiviiieiciceseeeee e

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities.....................ccceceuveeevvenn

Cash flows from investing activities:

INVESTMENT INCOME ...ttt bttt ee e st e n s et e ee e s
Interest iNCOME — J0aN PrOGraM............cooouiriiicitiieir e s eeeee s oo ees e ee e,
Interest rebate paid to US GOVEIrNMENt..............ceeviiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oot
Proceeds from sale of INVESIMENES ..........cccccviieeiiiic et e se e,
Net increase in cash and cash equUIValents.........................cccccoomeirisereeeeeeeeeeon,

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year ................ccoccoeeveeeeeeessen

Cash and cash equivalents, end Of tHE Y@ar ....................cccocoovevereeoeeeeceroeeeeesss

201

013

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

$ 63,872,179 $ 60,756,298
3,169,330 3,574,257
1,016,563 1,497,808
4,384,908 4,056,262

0 249,302

(126,651,280)  (120,134,895)
(4,413710)  (4,500,544)
(744,882) (701.916)

(59.366,892) _ (55.203,428)
(63.709) (3,355)
70,473,260 224,292,026
(36,987,000)  (38,091,000)
0 (123,198,475)
33,709,730 30,501,179
(32,330,302)  (30,545,405)
(580,952)  (2,275,871)
0 (5.105,000)
34284736 55577.454
4,384,864 5,247,717
23,070,693 21,376,774
(164,864) 0
10,505,694 24,042,529
37.796.387 50,667,020
12,650,522 51,037,691
237190438 186,152,747
24 4
(CONTINUED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

Reconciliation
Operating loss
Adjustments:

Investment in

of operating loss to net cash used for operating activities:

come

INEErESE EXPENSE......couiiiiiiriectenrerir e et st te s ae st s st ent st b e e s e esaeres

Bond issuance costs

Depreciation

Loan principal fOrgiveNESS.........ccoccviiiiiiieeic ettt st e s ee st e
Increase in 10ans recaivable, NEBL............covviiiiiic et e e e e e v e

(Increase) de

crease in prepaid EXPENSES .......ccvvvciceerieiee et er et renesee e

Decrease in accounts payable and accrued eXPENSES ..........c.oceevvvvvireeereeeeeeveeensseresnes
Increase in accounts receivable — SEIVICE fEES..........cccccveivirireee e r e eee s
Net cash used for operating activities.........................cccocveveeeeeeecieisireeierersernsnas

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Noncash inves

ting activities:

Increase (decrease) in loans receivable issued related to project costs payable ...........
Increase (decrease) in fair value of INVESIMENES..............c.coivieeeeee e e

201

$ (608,354)

2013

$ (1,991,684)

(4,215,888)  (2,782,770)
(23,738,021)  (21,885,290)
30,732,608 28,153,557
580,952 2,275,870
9,027 7,946
1,058,604 894,241
(62,779,101)  (59,378,596)
55,784 (9,329)
(335,618) (384,461)
(126.885) (102.912)
$(59,366,892) $ (55,203,428)
$(13,278,402)  $33,899,970
$ 191,755  $(1,984,574)
(CONCLUDED)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Organization

The Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency (Agency) was established by the State of Rhode
Island Legislature, under Section 46-12.2 of the Rhode Island General Laws (1986) as from time to time
amended and supplemented, as a body politic and corporate and public instrumentality of the State having
distinct legal existence separate from the State and does not constitute a department of the State
Government. Pursuant to an Operating Agreement between the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA), the Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management, the Rhode Island Department of
Health, and the Agency, the Agency administers the State's Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund (SRF) programs.

The Agency has also established a Community Septic System Loan Program as part of the Federal
Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Agency also established a Sewer Tie-In Loan Program. In 2013, the
Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund (MRBRF) was established by the General Assembly to be
administered by the Agency in conjunction with the Rhode Island Department of Transportation.

The Agency has no power to raise or collect taxes of any kind or to establish any generally applicable
fees and charges, other than administrative fees charged directly to those borrowers that receive the benefit of
the Agency's financing programs. The Agency, in its discretion, may charge cost of issuance fees to
borrowers.

The Agency commenced operations on July 29, 1990 and began lending activities during the first
quarter of fiscal year 1992. The Agency is not financially accountable for any other organization. The Agency
is a related organization of the State. The Agency is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of five
members, four of whom are members of the public appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of
the State Senate. The General Treasurer or such officer's designee, who shall be a subordinate within the
General Treasurer's department, shall serve on the Board of Directors as an ex-officio member. The State is
not financially accountable for the Agency even though it appoints a voting majority of the Agency's governing
board.

fn accordance with the standards for component units as promulgated in GASB Statement No. 61 -
The Financial Reporting Entity, the State of Rhode Island has determined that the Agency does not meet the
revised definition of a component unit. As a result, the Agency's results of operations and financial position
are no longer incorporated in the State of Rhode Island’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

(b) Description of Business

Clean Water and Drinking Water SRF Programs

The SRF programs, which were authorized by federal legislation — the Water Quality Act of 1987 for
the Clean Water SRF and the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1996 for the Drinking Water SRF — provide low-cost
financing to cities, towns, and other eligible borrowers primarily for the construction and improvement of
drinking water and wastewater infrastructure. The Agency's SRF program's primary activities include providing
low-cost financing for eligible projects funded by the issuance of debt, providing low-cost interim financing for
its borrowers, the investment of program funds, and the management and coordination of the programs.

(CONTINUED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Description of Business (Continued)
Clean Water and Drinking Water SRF Programs (Continued)

SRF program capitalization grants are issued from the EPA to the Agency, for which the State is
required to provide 20% in matching funds. The Agency's program is leveraged by issuing bonds to provide
funds for loans. Federal and state grants and other monies available to the Agency are pledged to secure
bonds by either financing reserve funds or pledged loans. Earnings on these pledged assets are used to pay
a portion of the debt service on the related bonds, thereby reducing the borrowers' loan repayment obligation.
The Agency provides loans to borrowers at 67% and 75% of the borrower's current market rate for the Clean
Water SRF and Drinking Water SRF, respectively.

The SRF programs are called the State Revolving Fund programs because as borrowers pay down
the principal balances of their loans and as the Agency pays principal on its SRF bonds, proportional amounts
are released from the reserves and/or loans pledged to secure the related SRF bonds. These funds come
back to the Agency and "revolve" or are used to establish new reserve funds or loans to borrowers that are
pledged as a source of payment and security, for new SRF bonds or for other eligible purposes.

Funds pertaining to the SRF programs are limited to specific uses by laws and regulations as well as
Grant and Operating Agreements entered into between EPA and the Agency. As a result of these limitations
on uses, these funds are classified as restricted on the statements of net position.

Included under the Clean Water SRF program, the Agency has established a Community Septic
System Loan Program (CSSLP) under the Federal Act through which communities may borrow funds to
address non-point source wastewater pollution abatement issues. The CSSLP gives communities the ability
to provide their residents whose septic systems are failing, have failed or are substandard with low-cost funds
for repair or replacement. Revolved capital funds provide the money for this direct loan program.

Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (RIWPCRF)

This fund receives state capital contributions before the funds are transferred to the Clean Water and
Drinking Water SRFs. The Agency has the authority to use the fund to make loans, issue bonds and receive
interest earnings or other capital from public or private sources. The fund has been used to finance projects
not meeting the requirements of the federal programs. The following programs are included in the RIWPCRF.

Rhode Island Zero Interest Loan Fund (RIZILF)

This program was established under the authority of Chapter 55 of the 2000 Public Laws of Rhode
Island. The Agency received $60 million from the State of Rhode Island of which $3 million was used for the
Drinking Water state match and $57 million was loaned to Narragansett Bay Commission as an investment to
provide the corpus of the funding of the zero interest loan program. Narragansett Bay Commission's
repayments will be used to provide the additional subsidization provided to borrowers who have received a
portion of their loan at 0% interest within the Clean Water SRF. Under this program, borrowers whose rating
is investment grade or better may receive 50% of their project costs at 0% interest and 50% of their project
costs at the Agency's regular subsidy at 33% below the borrower's market rate. These two rates are blended
thereby significantly reducing the borrower's interest payments to the Agency. Those borrowers whose rating
is non-investment grade, including those borrowers which were non-investment grade within the twelve
months prior to filing a loan application with the Agency, are eligible to receive 100% of their project funds, up
to $25 million, at 0% interest.

(CONTINUED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Description of Business (Continued)
Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (RIWPCRF) (Continued)
Facility Plan Loan Program (FPLP)

This program allows the Agency to make low-interest loans to municipalities so facility plan
documents, amendments, or updates can be completed. These facility plans are a prerequisite for funding
from the Clean Water SRF program. The loans have an interest rate of 1% and cannot exceed $150,000.
Revolved capital provides the money for the direct loan program.

Sewer Tie-In Loan Fund (STILF)

This program allows communities to borrow funds to address non-point source wastewater pollution
abatement issues. The STILF gives communities the ability to provide their residents low-cost financing for
sewer connections. Revolved capital from the RIWPCRF provides funding for this direct ioan program.

Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund (MRBRF)

This fund was established to provide municipalities with low-cost financial assistance for road and
bridge projects. State statute requires the Agency to administer the financial components of this fund and
requires the Rhode Island Department of Transportation (DOT) to receive, review, and rank municipal road
and bridge projects submitted for funding consideration on an annual basis. Initial funding for this program
was provided through State of Rhode Island grants totaling $10,313,869 through June 30, 2014. No loans
have been issued through June 30, 2014. Nine loans in excess of $10,000,000 will be awarded and disbursed
in fiscal year 2015.

(c) Basis of Accounting

The Agency is engaged only in business-type activities. The Agency's operations are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs of providing goods or services is financed through user charges. The financial statements of the Agency
are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as
specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) requirements for a special purpose
entity engaged solely in business-type activities.

During fiscal year 2014, the Agency implemented GASB Statement No. 65 — ltems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The objective of this statement is to provide financial reporting guidance for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. It requires the reclassification of amounts
previously reported as assets and liabilities to deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources
or to expenses or revenues. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 changed the Agency's beginning
net position as of July 1, 2012, resulting from the change in accounting for deferred bond issuance costs and
loan origination fees. Bond issuance costs are now expensed as incurred and loan origination fees are
recognized as revenue in the period received. In addition, this Statement requires the amounts deferred on
bond refundings to be reported as a deferred outflow or a deferred inflow of resources on the statement of net
position, rather than as an addition to or a reduction from the bond liability.

(d) Revenue Recognition

Operating revenues, including interest income, and expenses are generated through the issuance of
loans to governments and other eligible borrowers within the State. All other revenues and expenses are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

(CONTINUED)

21



RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Funding from federal capitalization grants and state matching grants are reported as nonoperating
revenue. Federal capitalization revenue is recognized in accordance with funding availability schedules
contained within the individual grant agreements. Revenue recognition associated with these grants is based
on the standard principles of eligibility, including timing requirements. The Agency recognizes grant revenue
upon acceptance of their request for drawdowns by the grantor agency and when qualifying commitments and
all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

The Agency's recent federal capitalization grants beginning with the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) grant received in 2009, required that a portion of the grant funds be
provided as additional subsidization in the form of principal forgiveness, grants, or negative interest loans.
The Agency provides the additional subsidization in the form of principal forgiveness, which has been
recorded as an operating expense.

(e) Fund Accounting

In order to ensure observation of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available
to the Agency, the accounts of the Agency are maintained in accordance with the principles of “Fund
Accounting”. This is a procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and
reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. Separate accounts
are maintained for each fund; however, funds will be combined for the presentation of the Agency’s financial
position and results of operations.

There are currently five separate funds included in the accompanying financial statements:
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (WPCRF) — accounts for activity relating to the

administering of the Federal Title VI SRF Loan Program (also known as the Clean Water SRF
Program).

Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (RIWPCRF) — accounts for activity
relating to the administering of the State SRF Loan Program.

Operating Fund — accounts for the administrative activities of the Agency, including servicing
loan programs and the Drinking Water SRF Set-Aside Program.

Drinking Water_ State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) — accounts for activity relating to the
administering of the Drinking Water SRF Loan Program.

Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund (MRBRF) — accounts for activity relating to
administering the Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Loan Program.

/) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Agency's cash equivalents include cash deposits at financial institutions and institutional money

market accounts. The Agency's policy is to treat all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less as cash and cash equivalents.

(CONTINUED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair values are established by quoted market values. The
Agency’s investments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of Treasury obligations (FNMA, FHLMC, and
FHLB), municipal bonds, U.S. guaranteed securities in the form of Repurchase Agreements, and Guaranteed
Investment Contracts (both restricted and unrestricted yields by the Indenture of Trust dated February 15,
1992 and subsequent amendments, between the trustee and the Agency). The Municipal Bond Investors
Assurance Corporation and AMBAC has imposed restrictions on indentured funds as to the types of
investments the Agency can purchase. These include obligations of the United States government or certain
Agencies thereof, guaranteed investment contracts, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, money
market funds, commercial paper, and notes or bonds of any State meeting specific rating requirements.

The Agency monitors its investment portfolio on a monthly basis, including guaranteed investment
contract providers, their credit ratings, and maturity dates.

Guaranteed Investment Contract providers (GIC providers) are limited to financial institutions rated at
least AA, Aa2 and AA from Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch, respectively, or the equivalent for financial
strength rating or claims paying ability. The GIC provider must meet the following ratings from S&P, Moody's
and Fitch: domestic banks rated at least “AA/Aa2/AA”"; U.S. branches of foreign banks rated at least
‘AAJAa2/AA"; insurance companies (or corporations whose obligations are guaranteed by an insurance
company (in the form of an insurance policy) or by an insurance holding company) rated “AAA/Aaa/AAA”.

Should the GIC Provider's rating be suspended, withdrawn or downgraded below AA- by Fitch, Aa3 by
Moody's or AA- by S&P during the term of the Agreement, the Provider must notify the Trustee and, within
fifteen (15) days of receipt of notice from the Trustee: (i) provide to the Trustee, or other mutually agreed
upon third party custodian, collateral which will be valued and held such that the Provider maintains the
applicable minimum rating for the duration and purpose of the investment, or (ii) at the request of the Trustee,
assign the Agreement to an eligible substitute provider, or (iii) at the request of the Trustee, repay the amount
on deposit, plus accrued. interest to the Trustee.

In accordance with Section 35-10.1-7 of the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, dealing with
the collateralization of public deposits, all time deposits with maturities of greater than 60 days and all deposits
in institutions that do not meet its minimum capital standards as required by its Federal regulator must be
collateralized. The Agency did not have any deposits in fiscal year 2014 and 2013 which required
collateralization based on the aforementioned criteria.

(h) Investment Income

Interest earned on investments is recognized as income in the fund in which the investments are held.
Unrealized gains and losses from the changes in fair value are recognized as investment income on the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the
Agency had unrealized gains of $191,755. For fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency had unrealized
losses of $1,984,574.

(CONTINUED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation expense for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 totaled $9,027
and $7,946, respectively. The Agency's capitalization threshold is any individual item with a total cost greater
than $500.

Depreciation is provided by use of the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of
the assets:

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life
Computer equipment 3 years
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures 3 -5 years
Leasehold improvements 7 —20 years
() Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are recorded as operating expenses when incurred. Prior to July 1, 2012, bond
issuance costs were capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the bond or to the date
at which the Agency had the right to redeem the bond, whichever is shorter. The implementation of GASB
Statement No. 65 resulted in the write-off of bond issuance costs as of July 1, 2012.

(k) Prepaid Bond Insurance Costs

Prepaid bond insurance costs are reported as an asset and are recognized as an expense over the
duration of the related debt using the straight-line method. The Agency did not have any prepaid bond
insurance costs at June 30, 2014 and 2013.

() Allowance for Loan Losses

Management reviews loan receivable balances on a periodic basis for possible uncollectible amounts.
In the event management determines a specific need for an allowance, provision for loss will then be provided.
Should a borrower default on a loan, the remedy is found in the loan agreement which is backed by the full
taxing power of the borrowing municipality in the form of a general obligation pledge or in the full revenue
collecting ability of the Agency’s revenue borrowers. Further, the Indenture of Trust as it relates to the Local
Interest Subsidy Trust (LIST) serves as a debt service reserve fund. An allowance for loan losses has not
been established at June 30, 2014 and 2013 since historical collection experience has shown amounts to be
fully collectible when due.

{m) Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting
period and a deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position that is applicable to a future
reporting period. Both deferred inflows and outflows are reported in the statement of net position but are not
recognized in the financial statements as revenues and expenses until the period(s) to which they relate.
Deferred outflows of resources of the Agency consist of deferred refunding costs.

(CONTINUED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Accrued Arbitrage Rebate

The Agency has bonds outstanding which are subject to arbitrage limitations. The term "arbitrage
rebate” refers to the required payment to the U.S. Treasury Department of excess earnings received on
applicable tax-exempt bond proceeds that are invested at a higher yield than the yield of the tax-exempt bond
issue. The Agency's ultimate rebate of arbitrage earnings on these issues is contingent on various factors,
including future yields on invested proceeds. The amount the Agency will be required to remit to the federal
government could differ materially from the estimated liability in the near term.

Based on the interim calculations that were performed as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Agency had
accrued arbitrage rebate liabilities totaling $1,535,996 and $1,479,112, respectively. During 2014 and 2013
the Agency paid to the U.S. Treasury Department $164,864 and $0 in arbitrage rebate liabilities, respectively.
The rebate obligations are generally computed and adjusted, as applicable, on a periodic basis in accordance
with regulations promulgated by the U.S. Treasury Department. Required rebates are generally due and
payable in five-year intervals during the life of debt issues, with rebates due no later than 60 days after the
retirement of the debt issues.

Arbitrage rebate expense is presented as a reduction in the amount of interest income from
investments.

(o) Loan Origination Fees

The Agency requires payment of loan origination fees at the time of loan closing. Loan origination
fees are recognized as revenue in the period received. Prior to July 1, 2012, the Agency deferred loan
origination fees net of direct loan origination costs and the net fee was recognized as income using the
effective interest method over the contractual life of the loan. For financial reporting purposes in the statement
of net position, outstanding loans receivable were reduced by unamortized loan origination fees. The
implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 resulted in the write-off of loan origination fees as of July 1, 2012,

(r) Project Costs Payable

Project costs payable represents the liability of amounts loaned to borrowers that have not been
requisitioned by the borrowers for their projects as of year-end, and totaled $166,974,448 and $180,252,850 at
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Included in these amounts is $43,977,793 and $24,730,750 payable to
Narragansett Bay Commission, the Agency's largest borrower.

()] Bond Premium

Bond premiums, included in long-term debt, are amortized using the effective interest method over the
respective life of the associated bond issues. Amortization of bond premiums, which are charged against
interest expense, totaled $4,271,688 and $2,841,977 for fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(r Amount Deferred on Refunding

During periods of declining interest rates, the Agency has refunded certain bond obligations reducing
aggregate debt service. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the
refunded bonds is recorded as an amount deferred on refunding. The deferred amount on refunding is
amortized over the remaining life of the refunded bonds, or the life of the new bonds, whichever is shorter.
The amortization amount is a component of interest on bonds, and the unamortized balances are recorded as
deferred outflows or inflows.

(CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Compensated Absences

The Agency has a policy which allows employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave
benefits up to a certain maximum number of days. Compensated absences are recognized as current salary
costs when incurred and are recorded in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the statement of net
position. The balance of accrued vacation and sick leave was $135,474 and $176,299 at June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

(/] Net Position

Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. Net
position of the Agency is classified as restricted when external constraints imposed by debt agreements,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of governments or constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Agency's net position is restricted by debt covenants and
grantor restrictions. Unrestricted net position has no external restrictions and is available for the operations of
the Agency. Unrestricted net position may be designated by actions of the Agency.

(u) Operating Revenues and Expenses

Substantially all revenues and expenses, including interest received on investments and loans and
interest paid on bonds, are considered operating items since the Agency issues bonds to finance loans for
specific projects. All other revenues and expenses not meeting this criteria are reported as nonoperating
revenue and expenses. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, federal EPA capitalization and state
grants are shown below operating income (loss) on the statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net
position.

v) Grant Revenue

The Agency recognizes grant revenues upon the acceptance of their request for drawdown by the
grantor agency and when qualifying commitments and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.
(w) Restricted Assets

Restricted assets of the Agency consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments designated
primarily for borrower construction drawdowns, borrower interest rate subsidies, and arbitrage rebate liabilities
related to the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund, Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund,
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, and the Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund. Certain loans
receivable in the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund provide
security for the related bonds. Loan payments received are restricted for payment of bond debt service.

(x) Resource Use

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. :

(CONTINUED)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
v) Recently Issued Accounting Standards
The Agency implemented the following GASB Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013:

o GASB Statement No. 61 — The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34.

. GASB Statement No. 62 — Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. This Statement incorporates into the GASB's authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included
in the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and AICPA
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not
conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements. This Statement improves
financial reporting by contributing to the GASB's efforts to codify all sources
of generally accepted accounting principles for state and local government so
that they derive from a single source.

The adoption of these Statements did not have an impact on the Agency’s financial position or results
of operations.

The Agency also implemented GASB Statement No. 63 - Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement provides guidance for reporting
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial
position. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are now required to be reported
separately from assets and liabilities. The adoption of this Statement resulted in a change in the presentation
of the balance sheet to what is now referred to as the Statement of Net Position and the term "net assets" is
changed to "net position" throughout the financial statements.

The Agency implemented the following GASB Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014:

) GASB Statement No. 67 - Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 2. This Statement revises and
establishes new financial reporting requirements for most governments that
provide their employees with pension benefits. The Agency provides its
employees with pension benefits through a deferred compensation plan.

o GASB Statement No. 70 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. This Statement requires a state or local
government guarantor that offers a nonexchange financial guarantee to
another organization or government to recognize a liability on its financial
statements when it is more likely than not that the guarantor will be required
to make a payment to the obligation holders under the agreement.

The adoption of these Statements did not have an impact on the Agency's financial position or results
of operations.

(CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
v) Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)

The Agency also implemented GASB Statement No. 65 — ltems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities. The objective of this statement is to provide financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources. It requires the reclassification of amounts previously reported as
assets and liabilities to deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or to expenses or
revenues. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 changed the beginning net position resulting
primarily from the change in accounting for deferred bond issuance costs and loan origination fees. Bond
issuance costs are now expensed as incurred. This Statement also requires loan origination fees to be
recognized as revenue in the period received. In addition, this Statement requires the amounts deferred on
refunding to be reported as a deferred outflow or a deferred inflow of resources on the statement of net
position, rather than as an addition to or a reduction from the bond liability. The adoption of this Statement
decreased the July 1, 2012 net position by $271,248 as described in Note 10,

The Agency will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements in future years:

) GASB Statement No. 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, effective for the Agency's fiscal
year ending June 30, 2015. This Statement revises and establishes new
financial reporting requirements for most governments that provide their
employees with pension benefits. The Agency provides its employees with
pension benefits through a deferred compensation plan.

. GASB Statement No. 69 - Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations, effective for the Agency's fiscal year ending
June 30, 2015. This Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of
government operations. As used in this Statement, the term government
combinations includes a variety of transactions referred to as mergers,
acquisitions, and transfers of operations.

) GASB Statement No. 71 - Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 68, effective for the Agency's fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

The impact of these pronouncements on the Agency’s financial position has not been determined.

(z) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(aa) Income Tax

The Agency is a related organization of the State of Rhode Island and is therefore, generally exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(bb)  Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial statements to conform to the
classifications used in the 2014 financial statements.

CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the Agency's deposits may not be returned. The Agency does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial
credit risk and therefore, does not limit the amount of deposit custodial credit risk. The Agency mitigates
custodial credit risk by ensuring that cash deposits that exceed federal depository insurance are collateralized
and by investing in institutional money market accounts - government portfolio that are "AAA" rated.

At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the Agency's cash deposits was $10,444,806. The bank
balance was $18,437,066 as of the same period, of which $250,025 was covered by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") and $18,187,041 was uninsured and collateralized by securities held by
the pledging institution's trust department in the Agency's name. The difference between the carrying amount
and the bank balance is due to outstanding reconciling items (primarily outstanding checks) at year-end.

At June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the Agency's cash deposits was $6,418,409. The bank
balance was $10,909,358 as of the same period, of which $250,025 was covered by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") and $10,659,333 was uninsured and collateralized by securities held by
the pledging institution's trust department in the Agency's name. The difference between the carrying amount
and the bank balance is due to outstanding reconciling items (primarily outstanding checks) at year-end.

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30:

Description 2014 2013
Cash On hand.........ccooviiiiiiiccceeee e e $ 100 $ 100
Deposits with financial iNStitUtions ............ooveveveeeeeo e 10,444,806 6,418,409
Institutional money market accounts — government portfolio..................... 239,396,054 230,771,929
Total cash and cash equivalents...................c.c.ccooovvcuvevoveoi $249,840,960 $237,190.438

The institutional money market funds — government portfolio had credit ratings of AAAm/Aaa-mf by
Standard & Poor's and Moody's at June 30, 2014 and 2013.

(CONTINUED)

29



RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Agency's investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2014:

Rating
Maturity Interest Moody's/S&P
Description Amount Date Rate as of 6/30/2014
U.S. Agency Securities:
Federal National Mortgage Association...... $ 2,111,524 2014 - 2024 6.120% - 6.160% AAA/AA+
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp........... 9,802,491 2015 - 2028 4.875% - 6.875% AAA/AA+
Federal Home Loan Bank ................c........ 8,871,061 2015 - 2023 4.750% - 5.625% AAAJAA+
Subtotal ...........coovvriiiieiienn, 20,785,076
Municipal Bonds:
Texas - College Student Loan Refunding... 1,352,784 2017 5.00% AAAJ/AAA
Washington State..........ccccovevvcvniiincnnnn. 857,083 2019 4.50% AA2/N/A
Oregon State .........ccoeccvencirecenennnenrenrernieenes 11,590,902 2015 -2023 3.795% - 5.435% AA2/AA
New York State........ccoovvenerinecrciineenenn 4,109,512 2015 - 2016 4.274% - 4.700% AA1/AA
Subtotal ............cccovvveivieinne 17,910,281
Collateralized Repurchase Agreements:
Bayern LB......c.cccovveviunnienininrire e e see e 619,818 2016 3.75% - 5.600% Aaa/AAA
Portigon (formerly Westdeutsche LB) ........ 4,909,285 2019 6.280% Aaa/AAA
Subtotal .............ccooviveeiiieiirane, 5,529,103
Guaranteed Investment Contracts:
Bayern LB........cccevveevivr i 6,536,010 2020 3.756% -5.330% Aaa/AAA
FSA Capital Management ..............ccc.e...... 7,296,129 2024 4.710% A2/AA
FSA Capital Management..............ccccueene. 11,310,561 2025 4.670% A2/AA
FSA Capital Management ....................c.... 5,707,399 2027 4.793% A2/AA
FSA Capital Management.............cccoeenen. 782,996 2028 5.060% A2/AA
TraNSAMENICA ..evvevirernrereeeerieieiserereesrissnsees 7,346,275 2026 4.770% A1/AA-
Citigroup Financial Products ...................... 10,148,608 2027 4.805% Baa2/A-**
GE Capital Corp ......c.ccevreerieenecrrersrerenne 5,056,768 2029 4.498% A1/AA+
Subtotal ...............ccovvvevrvvririeernnnne, 54,184,746
Total Investments....................... $98,409,206

**As of June 30, 2014, this GIC Provider's rating was downgraded below the minimum rating requirements as
disclosed in Note 1. The Agency determined the downgrade did not warrant subsequent action.
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2. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Agency's investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2013:

Rating
Maturity Interest Moody's/S&P
Description Amount Date Rate as of 6/30/2013
U.S. Agency Securities:
Federal National Mortgage Association...... $ 2,204,296 2014 - 2025 4.375% - 5.625% AAA/AA+
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp........... 9,558,005 2014 - 2029 4.875% - 6.875% AAA/AA+
Federal Home Loan Bank ..........c.ccoccoenuenne 9,847,909 2014 - 2023 4.375% - 6.160% AAA/AA+
Subtotal ...............ccooccvvvieceee, __ 21,610,210
Municipal Bonds:
Texas - College Student Loan Refunding... 1,362,444 2017 5.00% Aaa/AA+
Washington State..........c.cccvevveiinevneenn, 858,805 2019 4.50% Aa2/N/A
Oregon State......ccocoveireeeccivevcieniennnnns 12,675,648 2014 - 2023 3.294% - 5.435% Aa2/AA
New York State.........ccccooevevvrvrnnrrniinenne 7,145453 2014 - 2016 3.994% - 4.700% Aa2/AA
Subtotal .............oovevvieiieiin, 22,042,350
Collateralized Repurchase Agreements:
Societe Generale..........cooeeveeveeecrienivnnnenns 246,400 2013 7.200% A2/A-
Bayern LB.........ccoooveviiicniencereeeeene 847,066 2016 3.75% - 5.600% Aaa-/AAA
Portigon (formerly Westdeutsche LB}) ........ 5,674,880 2019 6.280% AaalAAA
Subtotal ................c.coovvvvervrrnnnn. 6,768,346
Guaranteed Investment Contracts:
Bayern LB........cccooovivriennrnin e 7,387,682 2020 3.75% -5.330% Aaa/AAA
FSA Capital Management ..........c.c.ccoue.ee. 7,910,243 2024 4.710% A2/AA-
FSA Capital Management ................ccuo..... 11,942,226 2025 4.670% A2/AA-
FSA Capital Management.......................... 6,219,119 2027 4.793% A2/AA-
FSA Capital Management .............cocuu....... 824,310 2028 5.060% A2/AA-
TransSamerica ........cccvevvvvevverreciersecnennne, 7,891,469 2026 4.770% A1/AA-
Citigroup Financial Products ...................... 10,833,489 2027 4.805% Baa2/A-**
GE Capital Corp.....c.cevevemverervnrnrnsrnceeenans 5,293,700 2029 4.498% A1/AA+
Subtotal ...............ccoevvvveviennn, 58,302,238
Total Investments...................... $108,723,144

*As of June 30, 2013, this GIC Provider's rating was downgraded below the minimum rating requirements as
disclosed in Note 1. The Agency determined the downgrade did not warrant subsequent action.
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CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments — Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a
failure of the counterparty, the Agency will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Agency requires that all investment agreements
be collateralized either upon execution of such agreement or upon the happening of certain events, and at all
times thereafter, by securities or other obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States, by certain
federal agencies having a market value of not less than 100% of the amount currently on deposit or in
accordance with their respective agreement. The Agency has a policy which requires the monthly monitoring
of custodial credit risk, including the review of institutional credit ratings.

Credit Risk— Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The risk is evidenced by a rating issued by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization, which
regularly rate such obligations. The majority of the Agency's investments are in Guaranteed Investment
Contracts (GICs) or in Treasury or agency securities. The Treasury and agency securities are all backed by
the federal government. The GICs either have collateral requirements in place upon execution of the
investment agreement, or have triggered collateral requirements under which, upon a rating downgrade below
a specified level, the counterparty is typically required to do one of three actions: 1) post collateral to a level
sufficient to maintain an AA rating, 2) assign the investment contract to a new counterparty that has at least a
AA rating, or 3) provide credit enhancement to maintain a rating on the investment contract of at least AA.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of the Agency's investments. The Agency limits its exposure to interest rate risk by entering into
guaranteed investments contracts and federally guaranteed fixed income securities for all of its long-term
investments upon which the Agency relies to meet its obligations.

At June 30, 2014, maturities of the Agency's investment were as follows:

Investment Maturities (Fair Value by Years)

Total Fair Less More
Description Value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

U.S. Agency Securities $20,785,076  $1,956,401 $ 5617972 §$ 9,570,956 $ 3,639,747

Municipal Bonds.............. e 17,910,281 3,960,413 8,725,318 5,224,550
Collateralized Repurchase
Agreements .......ccoccevcrevrceenieeennnen, 5,529,103 5,529,103
Guaranteed Investment
107010117 To: (- J R 54,184,746 13,832,139 40,352,607
Total.........ccooeeiiiiiiiiecri s $98,409,206 $5.916.814 $19,872,393  $28,627,645 $43,992,354

At June 30, 2013, maturities of the Agency's investment were as follows:

Investment Maturities (Fair Value by Years)

Total Fair Less More
Description Value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

U.S. Agency Securities.................... $ 21,610,210 $1,148,369 $ 7,636,492 $ 9,397,780 $ 3,427,569
Municipal Bonds ........cccoovrveerninene. 22,042,350 4,020,059 10,507,392 7,027,668 487,231
Collateralized Repurchase

Agreements .......ccoceveoeveeeiieeeeiiennns 6,768,346 246,400 6,521,946
Guaranteed Investment

Contracts .......coovvvvvveeeiciieeece, 58,302,238 18,343,571 39,958,667
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CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk ~ Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of
the Agency's investment in a single issuer. The issuers where investments exceeded 5% of the Trust's total

investments are as follows at June 30:

Percentage of Total Investments

2014 2013
Provider:
FSA Capital Management............cccocevveevecrnnrneenn. 26% 25%
Oregon State Municipal Bond............cc.coovvvuernnnnnn. 12% 12%
Citigroup Financial Products..........c...ccccoovvvvernenn. 10% 10%
Bayern LB ........cccoooveiii e senrnees 7% 8%
TranSamMEriCa......ccccccevvevrirree i e e s cresiee s 7% 7%
GE Capital Corp.......ccoevververneincenisninie e 5% 5%
LOANS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Agency had loans receivable of $1,171,111,536 and $1,122,669,441
representing 202 and 201 outstanding loans, respectively, which are restricted for payment of bond debt
service. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the current portion of loans receivable totaled $62,936,768 and
$57,177,078, respectively. In addition, at June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Agency had outstanding unused
commitments (project costs payable) totaling approximately $166,974,448 and $180,252,850.

The borrowers are obligated to repay the full balance of loan agreements; however, funds are
disbursed by the Agency in accordance with the loan agreements as costs are incurred for the projects for
which the loans are intended. The Agency disburses funds to the borrowers and/or vendors, no more than
once a month, after receipt of an official request for disbursement, which is accompanied by supporting
documentation. The Agency is obligated to disburse funds only up to the value of the loan agreement, and is
not responsible for any excess costs incurred by the borrower. The borrower, in turn, is obligated to make
principal and interest payments in accordance with the repayment schedules per the loan documentation even
if funds have not been fully disbursed by the Agency at the time of first payment. Loans are usually repaid
over 20 years with either level principal or level total payments. The balances of the loan agreements may
include financing for the interest expense to be incurred by the borrowers during the period of construction.

The Agency has established a Local Interest Subsidy Trust (LIST) Fund, which is restricted by the
Indenture of Trust between the trustee and the Agency and may be used to make the required bond payments
in the event of default by the borrowers.

The Agency had loans receivable to three borrowers representing 53% of the Agency's total loan
receivable balance at June 30, 2014 and 2013.
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Principal Forgiveness Loans

The Agency has received ARRA and non-ARRA capitalization grants which can be used to issue
principal forgiveness loans. The Agency was awarded American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)
Capitalization Grants for use in its Clean Water and Drinking Water SRFs. ARRA Grants are for purposes
consistent with the intent of Clean Water and Drinking Water SRF, including construction of wastewater
treatment facilities, drinking water facilities and associated infrastructure, green infrastructure, nonpoint source
projects, estuary projects and program administration. The ARRA Capitalization Grants do not require a state
match component. The ARRA Capitalization Grants stipulated that the Agency must have committed loans to
recipients with signed construction contracts by February 17, 2010; this requirement was met in 2010.

The Agency's total capitalization grants available for principal forgiveness loans at June 30, 2014 are
summarized below:

Clean Water SRF

Principal Principal Forgiveness

Capitalization Capitalization Forgiveness Loans Issued
Grant Grant Award Component June 30, 2014
2009 (ARRA)......c.c.c...... $26,314,600 $13,157,300 $13,157,300
2010, e, 13,681,000 2,048,980 2,048,980
2011, 9,915,000 918,782 918,782
2012, 9,486,000 527,198 527,198
2013, 8,955,000 500,000 500,000
Total........................ $68,351,600 $17,152,260 $17,152,260

The above schedule includes $10,844,522 in principal forgiveness loans issued to Narragansett Bay

Commission, the Agency's largest borrower.

Drinking Water SRF

Principal Principal Forgiveness
Capitalization Capitalization Forgiveness Loans Issued
Grant Grant Award Component June 30, 2014
2009 (ARRA) ......ccccoeuu.. $19,500,000 $ 9,750,000 $ 9,750,000
20100 13,573,000 4,071,900 4,071,900
201, 9,418,000 2,825,400 2,825,400
2012, e, 8,975,000 1,795,000 1,795,000
2013 8,421,000 1,684,200 0
Total......................... $59,887,000 $20,126,500 $18,442,300

Loans made to eligible borrowers under the Clean Water and Drinking Water SRFs may be forgiven if
certain continuing criteria are met, including that the borrower continues to make debt service payments,
continues to operate the project in compliance with laws and regulations, and does not dispose of or
discontinue the project. The Agency has loans outstanding totaling $35,594,560 and $35,003,785 at
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, that upon fulfillment of these requirements by the borrower, could be
forgiven at some future point. For purposes of the basic financial statements, the Agency recognizes principal
forgiveness expense as the related loans are repaid. The total amount forgiven under these programs in 2014
and 2013 was $1,058,604 and $894,241, respectively. The amounts are included in loan principal forgiveness
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
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BONDS PAYABLE

Since its inception, the Agency has issued revenue bonds to local governments to finance water
pollution abatement projects and as of March 4, 2004, safe drinking water projects. The bonds are special
obligations of the Agency payable solely from and secured by the particular funds, assets or revenues,
generated by the Borrower Bonds. The bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the State or any of its
subdivisions and none of its revenues are pledged. The Agency has no taxing power.

The Agency had the following revenue bonds outstanding at June 30:
201 013

Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds:

1992 Series A Bonds, dated February 15, 1992, with serial bonds of
$15,875,000 at rates varying from 3.5% to 6.6% due annually from
October 1, 1993 through October 1, 2008 and term bonds of
$2,390,000 at 6.7% due October 1, 2010 and $2,650,000 at 6.75%
due October 1, 2013. On February 4, 1999, the Agency advance
refunded $9,210,000 of the outstanding bonds .............cccoovvevvecveeeenene. $ 0 $ 15,000

1993 Series A Bonds, dated February 15, 1993, with serial bonds of
$23,450,000 at rates varying from 3.8% to 9.2% due annually from
October 1, 1996 through October 1, 2010 and a term bond of
$10,185,000 at 5.4% due October 1, 2015.......oooceeeeeeeeeeeeere e en v 4,095,000 6,180,000

1994 Series A Bonds, dated June 1, 1994, with serial bonds of
$18,495,000 at rates varying from 5.0% to 7.7% due annually from
October 1, 1995 through October 1, 2012 and a term bond of
$3,935,000 at 5.875% due October 1, 2015. On February 4, 1999,
the Agency advance refunded $5,725,000 of the outstanding bonds..... 1,290,000 1,965,000

1995 Series A Bonds, dated December 15, 1995, at rates varying
from 4.156% to 7.00% due annually from October 1, 1997 through
October 1, 2016. On May 6, 2010, the Agency advance refunded
$415,000 of the outstanding bonds............ccooveeeivceeeeeec e eeeeeer 850,000 1,075,000

1999 Series A Bonds, dated January 1, 1999, with serial bonds of
$19,590,000 at rates varying from 3.7% to 5.25% due annually from
October 1, 2002 through October 1, 2016 and term bonds of
$3,765,000 at 4.75% due October 1, 2018 and $2,470,000 at 4.75%
due October 1, 2020. On May 6, 2010, the Agency advance
refunded $4,990,000 of the outstanding bonds ............cccoovvevevveveriena., 7,370,000 8,245,000

1999 Series C Bonds, dated August 1, 1999, with serial bonds of
$24,010,000 at rates varying from 4.15% to 5.50% due annually from
October 1, 2001 through October 1, 2019. On May 6, 2010, the
Agency advance refunded $4,985,000 of the outstanding bonds........... 4,950,000 5,720,000

2000 Series A Bonds, dated December 1, 2000 with serial bonds of
$26,550,000 at rates varying from 4.50% to 5.125% due annually
from October 1, 2001 through October 1, 2020. On May 6, 2010, the
Agency advance refunded $7,430,000 of the outstanding bonds........... 5,225,000 5,905,000
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Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds (Continued):

2002 Series A Bonds, dated April 1, 2002 with serial bonds of
$29,305,000 at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.50% due annually from
October 1, 2002 through October 1, 2022. On May 6, 2010, the
Agency advance refunded $7,505,000 of the outstanding bonds........... 7,680,000

2002 Series B Bonds, dated October 1, 2002, with serial bonds of
$76,035,000 at rates varying from 2.0% to 5.0% due annually from
October 1, 2004 through October 1, 2022. On May 6, 2010, the
Agency advance refunded $25,260,000 of the outstanding bonds........ 13,940,000

2003 Series B Bonds, dated November 13, 2003, with serial bonds of
$67,965,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.250% due annually
from October 1, 2005 through October 1, 2024. On May 6, 2010, the
Agency advance refunded $20,645,000 of the outstanding bonds.
On November 8, 2012, the Agency advance refunded $18,205,000 of
the outstanding bonds. The remaining bonds are due October 1,
2013 e FR T TR 0

2004 Series A Bonds, dated December 30, 2004, with serial bonds of
$69,625,000 at rates varying from 2.50% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2005 through October 1, 2025. On November 8, 2012,
the Agency advance refunded $46,010,000 of the outstanding bonds.
The remaining bonds are due October 1, 2013 through October 1,
2014 .o et ettt 3,500,000

2005 Series A Bonds, dated December 15, 2005, with serial bonds of
$49,080,000 at rates varying from 4.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2006 through October 1, 2026 .............ccccoeoeeveeeeeeeeeeeeesenn, 32,035,000

2006 Series A Bonds, dated December 21, 2006, with serial bonds of
$57,795,000 at rates varying from 3.40% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2007 through October 1, 2027 .........ococevoeeeeceeeeeeereeee, 41,845,000

2007 Series A Bonds, dated December 12, 2007 with serial bonds of
$39,740,000 at rates varying from 4.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2009 through October 1, 2028 ........ccoovveveeeeecseeeeoeoen, 32,725,000

2009 Series A Bonds, dated October 6, 2009, with serial bonds of
$41,555,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2011 through October 1, 2030 ..........cccoovveeeeeeeeeee oo, 38,055,000

2010 Series A Refunding Bonds, dated May 6, 2010, with serial
bonds of $77,140,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due
annually from October 1, 2010 through October 1, 2023 .........coovveean.... 64,400,000

2010 Series B Bonds, dated June 24, 2010, with serial bonds of
$30,145,000 at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2012 through October 1, 2030 .....cccvvovvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 29,710,000

N
—
w

9,115,000

17,680,000

3,270,000

6,275,000
34,445,000
44,430,000
34,640,000
39,055,000
67,650,000
29,945,000
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Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds (Continued):

2011 Series A Bonds, dated March 29, 2011, with serial bonds of
$40,200,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2012 through October 1, 2032 ........ccccooccveiviieeieeeree e 37,540,000 38,450,000

2012 Series A Bonds, dated June 28, 2012, with serial bonds of
$25,620,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2014 through October 1, 2033. .......cccooccvieiiiiiereeeie e, 25,620,000 25,620,000

2012 Series B Refunding Bonds, dated November 8, 2012, with
serial bonds of $65,860,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00%
due annually from October 1, 2013 through October 1, 2025 ............... 64,710,000 65,860,000

2013 Series A Bonds, dated June 6, 2013, with serial bonds of
$52,070,000 at rates varying from 1.50% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2015 through October 1, 2034 .........cccooveeveieeeeiireeeceveeeennn. 52,070,000 52,070,000

2014 Series A Bonds, dated February 20, 2014, with serial bonds of
$55,925,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2015 through October 1, 2034 ..........coeooeceeeveeeeceeeeeeeeeenn 55,925,000 0

Safe Drinking Water Revenue Bonds:

2004 Series A Bonds, dated March 31, 2004, with serial bonds of
$40,170,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2005 through October 1, 2024. On June 26, 2013, the
Agency advance refunded $24,205,000 of the outstanding bonds.
The remaining bonds are due October 1, 2013 through October 1,
20T4 e e et e 1,810,000 3,555,000

2005 Series A Bonds, dated March 23, 2005, with serial bonds of
$42,960,000 at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2006 through October 1, 2027. On June 26, 2013, the
Agency advance refunded $17,280,000 of the outstanding bonds.
The remaining bonds are due October 1, 2013 through October 1,
2015 and October 1, 2025 through October 1, 2027 .......c.cccovvevveereunn.. 9,835,000 12,315,000

2007 Series A Bonds, dated March 7, 2007, with serial bonds of
$5,135,000 at rates varying from 4.00% to 4.125% due annually from
October 1, 2008 through October 1, 2019 ........ccocevveee v 3,285,000 3,565,000

2008 Series A Bonds, dated June 5, 2008, with serial bonds of
$36,350,000 at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2010 through October 1, 2029 .........covveeeeeeeeeoeeeeeee 32,590,000 33,615,000

2009 Series A Bonds, dated November 19, 2009, with serial bonds of

$9,935,000 at rates varying from 2.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2011 through October 1, 2030 .......ccooveeveeeeeeeeevereeen, 9,485,000 9,735,000

(CONTINUED)
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BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Safe Drinking Water Revenue Bonds (Continued):

2012 Series A Bonds, dated June 14, 2012, with serial bonds of
$34,620,000 at rates varying from 0.55% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2014 through October 1, 2033 ...,

2013 Series A Bonds, dated May 14, 2013, with serial bonds of
$35,780,000 at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% due annually from
October 1, 2015 through October 1, 2034 ...........cccoviviieicieeceiiec e,

2013 Series B Refunding Bonds, dated June 26, 2013, with serial
bonds of $38,790,000 at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% due
annually from October 1, 2015 through October 1, 2024.....................

Non-SRF Wastewater Treatment System Revenue Bonds:

1997 Series Bonds, dated August 1, 1997. The Series 1997 Bonds
mature on September 1, 2022, with sinking fund payments due on
September 1, 1999, and September 1, 2018 through September 1,
2022, inclusive. Interest of 5.8% is due annually on March 1, and
SEPIEMDET .o

2008 Wastewater Revenue Bonds dated April 30, 2008, with serial
bonds of $4,000,000 at 4.85% due annually from March 1, 2009
through March 1, 2028..........c.cooiiiiiie e

2011 Series A Bonds, (City of Newport), dated March 31, 2011 with
serial bonds of $10,345,000 at 4.30% due annually from September
1, 2011 through September 1, 2026 ...........ccccooe e,

2012 Series A Bonds, (City of Warwick), dated June 26, 2012, with
serial bonds of $2,400,000 at 3.285% due annually from August 1,
2012 through August 1, 2022.........ooiiiiiiiiie e

2013 Series A Revenue Bonds (Town of Coventry), dated September
3, 2013 with serial bonds of $8,225,000 at 4.25% due annually from
September 1, 2014 through September 1, 2028...........cccoeeivveiiieinnnns

Non-SRF Drinking Water Bonds:

2003 Series A Bonds, dated December 17, 2003, with term bonds of
$5,840,000 at 5.00% due annually from October 1, 2025 through
October 1, 2028 and term bonds of $13,500,000 at 5.00% due
annually from October 1, 2029 through October 1, 2035...........cccc...

2003 Series B bonds, dated December 17, 2003, with term bonds of
$7,655,000 at 6.00% due annually from October 1, 2025 through
OCtODEI 1, 2035 ... e

N
.
S

34,620,000

35,780,000

38,790,000

28,490,000

3,160,000

9,330,000

2,192,000

8,225,000

19,340,000

7,655,000

N
o
—
w

34,620,000

35,780,000

38,790,000

28,490,000

3,315,000

9,850,000

2,399,000

19,340,000

7,655,000
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BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

2014 2013
Non-SRF Drinking Water Bonds (Continued):
2011 Series A Bonds, (City of Newport), dated September 30, 2011
with serial bonds of $6,640,000 at 3.4% due annually from
September 1, 2012 through September 1, 2027 ........ccccovevvivioeeennee 6,000,000 6,325,000
SUDLOtAL ... e 774,122,000 746,959,000
Add: bond premium (discount) net of amortization............c............... 63,500,084 61,448,512
Total bonds payable.................c..cuocoeoeviiviniiicieiieeeereeeee e, $837,622,084 $808,407.512
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Long-term debt:
General obligation debt............... $746,959,000 $64,150,000 $36,987,000 $774,122,000 $40,659,000
Plus: bond premium (discount),
net of amortization and
refunding.......cccoveveiivecceccieneee. 61,448,512 6,323,260 4,271,688 63,500,084

Total long-term debt

Annual principal and interest requirements are as follows for the years ending June 30:

Principal Interest Total

2015 ., $ 40,659,000 $ 34,727,508 $ 75,386,508
2016 i, 44,016,000 32,762,591 76,778,591
2017 i, 44,703,000 31,061,331 75,764,331
2018 45,560,000 20,264,286 74,824,286
2019 . e 49,128,000 27,131,610 76,259,610
2020-2024.........c.ccocevvenn. 256,326,000 98,585,466 354,911,466
2025-2029........cccovvverenn, 172,535,000 47,129,122 219,664,122
2030-2034.....cccvveeverene 106,290,000 14,069,128 120,359,128
2035, 14,905,000 501,681 15,406,681

Total ...........cccovveuveeereannnn. $774,122,000 $315,232,723 $1,089,354,723

(CONTINUED)
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BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)
Advanced Refunding of Debt

On November 8, 2012, the Agency issued the 2012 Series B Water Pollution Control Refunding
Revenue Bonds. The proceeds from this bond issue were used to fully defease the 2003 Series A Bonds and
portions of the 2003 Series B and 2004 Series A Bonds. Upon delivery of the 2012 Series B Refunding
Revenue Bonds, the Agency established an irrevocable escrow frust fund pursuant to a Refunding Trust
Agreement between the Agency and U.S. Bank National Association. Under the terms of the Refunding Trust
Agreement, the proceeds of the 2012 Series B Refunding Revenue Bonds were deposited into escrow funds
established for each series of Refunded Bonds which were invested in investment obligations maturing in
amounts and bearing interest at rates sufficient to pay, when due, interest, and upon maturity or prior
redemption on the earliest available redemption date, the outstanding principal of the Refunded Bonds. Each
escrow fund is pledged solely for the benefit of holders of the applicable series of Refunded Bonds.

The Agency completed the November 8, 2012 refunding to reduce its total debt service payments
over the next 13 years by $11,663,231 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values
of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $9,480,801.

On June 26, 2013, the Agency issued the 2013 Series B Safe Drinking Water Refunding Bonds. The
proceeds from this bond issue were used to defease portions of the 2004 Series A and 2005 Series A Drinking
Water Bonds. Upon delivery of the 2013 Series B Safe Drinking Water Refunding Bonds, the Agency
established an irrevocable escrow trust fund pursuant to a Refunding Trust Agreement between the Agency
and U.S. Bank National Association. Under the terms of the Refunding Trust Agreement, the proceeds of the
2013 Series B Refunding Bonds were deposited into escrow funds established for each series of Refunded
Bonds which were invested in investment obligations maturing in amounts and bearing interest at rates
sufficient to pay, when due, interest, and upon maturity or prior redemption on the earliest available
redemption date, the outstanding principal of the Refunded Bonds. Each escrow fund is pledged solely for the
benefit of holders of the applicable series of Refunded Bonds.

The Agency completed the June 26, 2013 refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the
next 11 years by $3,691,618 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old
and new debt service payments) of approximately $3,252,050.

Since those bonds have, in effect, been redeemed under the defeasance, they are no longer
outstanding under the Agency’s basic bond resolution and, therefore, they are not entitled to the pledge of the
basic bond resolution. Accordingly, these bonds and the related escrow funds are not reflected in the
June 30, 2014 and 2013 financial statements.

The outstanding principal of the Agency's defeased bonds is summarized below:

Defeased Bonds

Outstanding

Description June 30, 2014
2012 Series BClean Water.........coccvvveevveevenen.n. $46,010,000
2013 Series B Drinking Water .................cccoce.... 41,485,000
TOtal ... s $87,495,000

(CONTINUED)
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BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)
Bond Anticipation Notes
The Agency utilizes short-term borrowing to provide interim financing to borrowers.

On September 30, 2011, the Agency received a Bond Anticipation Note in the amount of $5,105,000.
The BAN required interest at 1.75% and matured on September 7, 2012.

The Agency had no short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

When the Agency refunds or advance refunds its bonds, it calculates the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt. The resulting accounting gain or loss is then
amortized over the life of the refunding bonds. The net unamortized excess of reacquisition price over the net
carrying value of the defeased bonds is recorded in deferred outflows of resources on the Statements of Net
Position.

Excess of reacquisition price over net carrying value of defeased bonds was as follows at June 30:

2014 201
Beginning balance of deferred outflows of resources...... $7,771,775 $ 4,008,411
AAItIONS ... e 0 4,498,704
REAUCHIONS ..o (958.886) (735,340)

Ending balance of deferred outflows of resources.. $ 6,812,889 $ 7,771,775

CAPITALIZATION GRANTS

Under Title VI of the Federal Clean Water Act of 1972, as amended by the Federal Water Quality Act
of 1987 (together with any regulations promulgated thereunder the "Federal Act"), the General Assembly of
the State enacted the Act, which established the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Revolving Fund)
to be administered and maintained by the Agency. Under the Act, the Department of Environmental
Management of the State (DEM) is directed to promulgate rules and regulations pertaining to applications by
borrowers for financial assistance for water pollution abatement projects. No project is eligible for financing by
the Agency until the DEM has issued its Certificate of Approval. The Certificate of Approval specifies, among
other things, the estimated project costs that are eligible for financial assistance and other terms and
conditions relating to the construction and operation of projects. The DEM and the Agency entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding dated December 6, 1990, as amended, pursuant to which the DEM agreed to
assume programmatic responsibilities for the Revolving Fund and the Agency agreed to assume the financial
and operational responsibilities of the Revolving Fund including the determination of the type of financial
assistance to be provided to applicants.

(CONTINUED)
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CAPITALIZATION GRANTS (Continued)

In 1996, Congress amended the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (as amended, the "Federal Act") to
improve and provide financial support for the nation's public water systems. As required by the Federal Act,
the General Assembly of the State enacted under Chapter 12.8 of Title 46 of the Rhode Island General Laws,
as amended, a law entitled "The Water Projects Revolving Loan Fund" (the DWSRF Act), which established
the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (the DWSRF) to be administered and maintained by the Agency.
Under the Act, the Department of Health of the State (DOH) is directed to promulgate rules and regulations
pertaining to applications by borrowers for financial assistance for safe drinking water projects. No project is
eligible for financing by the Agency until the DOH has issued its Certificate of Approval. The Certificate of
Approval specifies, among other things, the estimated project costs that are eligible for financial assistance
and other terms and conditions relating to the construction and operation of projects. The DOH and the
Agency entered into a Memorandum of Understanding dated July 13, 2000, as amended, pursuant to which
the DOH agreed to assume programmatic responsibilities for the DWSRF and the Agency agreed to assume
the financial and operational responsibilities of the DWSRF including the determination of the type of financial
assistance to be provided to applicants.

(a) Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) -

The Agency receives capitalization grants from the Environmental Protection Agency for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund under Title VI of the Clean Water Act. These grants are used to fund the
Agency's lending activities and to reimburse the State Department of Environmental Management for up to 4%
of the capitalization grant for expenses incurred for services they provide the Agency related to these lending
activities. In order to obtain the federal monies under the Title VI grant program, the Agency must also obtain
a commitment for state matching funds of 20% of the federal award.

The following is a table of the federal and state matching funds awarded to the Agency and the
balances remaining for drawdown under Title VI of the Clean Water Act as of June 30, 2014

Balance
‘Remaining for
Grant Year Award Drawdown

2012:

Federal aWard..........c..ooueeieiiiiece et e e $9,486,000 $3,998,595

] r= 1Y g 5= 1 (o] o DU 1,897,200 0
2013:

Federal @Ward .............oocuveeiiiie e s e et eee 8,955,000 7,655,851

Sate MALCN ...t 1,791,000 0
2014:

Federal award (applied for July 2014)............cccccovevereeeeeeeenn, 9,410,000 N/A

State match (applied for July 2014) .......c.ooveeeveeeeeeeeereeseeeee e, 1,882,000 N/A

(CONTINUED)
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CAPITALIZATION GRANTS (Continued)
(b) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)

The Agency also receives capitalization grants from the Environmental Protection Agency for the
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund under Section 1452 of the Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of
1996. The grants will be used to provide loans to water suppliers for system improvements and to provide
funding for various improvement programs administered by the RI Department of Health to bring water
suppliers in the State up to the minimum standards promulgated by the Safe Drinking Water Act. In order to
receive the funding from EPA, the Agency must commit 20% of the Federal award in the form of State
matching funds. The Agency agrees to provide, through methods available to it, the appropriate state
matching funds to each grant.

The Drinking Water SRF allows the Department of Health to "set-aside" up to 31% of the annual
capitalization grants in four set-aside accounts as follows: 1) 4% for program administration which is to be
split between the Department of Health and the Agency, 2) up to 2% for technical assistance, 3) up to 10% for
state program management, and 4) up to 15% for local assistance.

The following is a table of the federal and state matching funds awarded to the Agency and the
balances remaining for drawdown under the Safe Drinking Water Act as of June 30, 2014:

Balance
Remaining for
Grant Year Award Drawdown
2010:
Federal aWard ...........ccoooeeivieieee et r e $13,573,000 $ 251,421
StAte MALCN... ..o e 2,714,600 0
2011: |
Federal award ...............coooiiiiiii et e s e e e 9,418,000 540,398
StAte MALCN ... e s 1,883,600 0
2012:
Federal award .............cooooiiiiiicie et et e e e 8,975,000 1,166,924
StAtE MALCH ... e 1,795,000 0
2013:
Federal aWard .............ccoii i e e e e e 8,421,000 8,421,000
State match............... ettt rreeeee i ———ttaeetia————teeiesia it artetersienanrereraean 1,684,200 1,684,200
2014;
Federal award (applied for July 2014)..........cccoeveeveiiiieeeeeeee, 8,845,000 N/A
State match (applied for July 2014) ........cooveveeeieiiiiieeeeeeeee. 1,769,000 N/A
(CONTINUED)
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DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Agency offers its employees “The Rhode Island Clean Water Protection Finance Agency
Deferred Compensation Plan” (the Plan) created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The
Plan, available to all Agency employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. The Agency's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing or amending the Plan's
provisions and establishing or amending contribution requirements. The defined contribution Plan is currently
administered by ING Life Insurance and Annuity Company.

The Agency implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Statement No. 32,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.
All assets and income of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their
beneficiaries. As a result, deferred compensation investments and the respective liability have been removed
from the Agency’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

The Agency is obligated to remit to the administrator an amount equal to 10% of employee
compensation on a monthly basis. The Agency's contribution totaled $47,606 and $51,161 for the years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Employees are allowed to make contributions to the Plan up to,
but not exceeding, the lesser of 33 1/3% of their individual compensation or $17,500 ($23,000 if age 50 or
older). There is no additional obligation incurred by the Agency as a result of the employee contributions.
Employee contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $17,200 and $23,947,
respectively. The Agency has an obligation to prudently manage these monies.

OPERATING LEASE

On June 1, 1998, the Agency entered into a seven year lease, with renewal options, for the rental of
its corporate offices. The Agency incurred rent expense of $73,954 and $59,891, during fiscal year 2014 and
2013, respectively. During fiscal year 2013, the Agency renewed its existing lease agreement for a period of
60 months commencing July 1, 2013 and expiring June 30, 2018.

The following schedule summarizes the Agency's required future minimum lease payments:

Year Ending June 30: Amount
20705 e $ 79,744
2016 et 79,744
20707 i 79,744
2008t e s 79.744

TOfal..........oeeveeeeeee s $318,976

(CONTINUED)
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8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The summary of changes in property and equipment at June 30, 2014 are summarized below:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2013 Additions Retirements June 30, 2014
Cost:

COMPULETS ..o $ 51,626 $ 6,512 $ 58,138
Furniture and fixtures.........cc.cccoeveiniiiinienns 25,598 7,059 32,657
Equipment.......ccccoiiiinii e 33,476 0 33,476
Leasehold Improvements .............ccc.cceeeeen 29,701 50,138 79,839
Total coSt...........ooooeeeeceer e 140,401 63,709 $ 0 204,110

Accumulated depreciation:
COMPULETS ..o e 47,253 3,205 50,458
Furniture and fixtures......cccccccccooevieiieiiinnens 22,870 1,485 24,355
Equipment..........cooiiii e 30,666 1,598 32,264
Leasehold Improvements ...........c.c..cccevene 14,108 2,739 16,847
Total accumulated depreciation............. 114,897 9.027 0 123,924
Net capital assets..................cccceevveennn. $ 25,504 $54,682 $ 0 $ 80,186

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Capitalization Grants

The Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency receives grants from the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) and the State of Rhode Island to fund its loan program activities. These amounts are subject to
audit and adjustment by the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected
may constitute a liability of the Agency. The Environmental Protection Agency conducts annual fiscal and
regulatory compliance reviews to determine that Agency activities are in compliance with EPA regulations. As
of June 30, 2014, no expenditures of the Agency have been disallowed. Agency officials believe that any
future disallowance of expenditures would not be material.

10. RESTATEMENT

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 65 as discussed in Note 1, the Agency restated its
net position at July 1, 2012 from $460,021,569 to $459,750,321.

Net position as of July 1, 2012 as originally reported..............coerveveeienenns $460,021,569
Write-off of debt issuance COStS ..o (7,470,819)
Recognition of deferred loan origination fees ...........cc.ccovevvevvveevieceeeee, 7,199,571
Net position as of July 1, 2012, asrestated............cccccoveeeveriiciier e, $459,750,321
(CONTINUED)
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11.

12.

13.

DESIGNATION OF UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION
The Agency’s Board has designated its unrestricted net position as follows;
Operating Fund - Interim/Short-term Loan Program

On October 4, 2004, the Board voted to designate all net assets in excess of the Agency’s annual
operating budget to be used for loans to qualified borrowers. The amount of these Board designated funds
totaled approximately $35,088,000 at June 30, 2014.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets; errors or omissions and injuries to employees. The Agency has purchased commercial insurance to
protect itself from potential liabilities from losses or claims. To date, the Agency has not incurred any claims
or losses. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, and there have
been no settlements that exceed the Agency’s insurance coverage during the past three years.

SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS
Current Economic Conditions

Beginning in 2008, the U.S. economy experienced uncertainty and instability in the financial markets
and a number of other sectors of the economy. The Congress, U.S. Treasury and the Federal Reserve have
taken a number of actions in an attempt to provide liquidity to the credit markets, to save and create jobs and
to stabilize the overall economy. At this time the impacts of these actions cannot be determined.

Existing collateralized investments and counterparty financial institutions are being closely monitored
to ensure contractual obligations are being met and contingency plans are being developed, should action be
required. The continued uncertainty in the financial markets limits the qualifying investment alternatives for
existing cash, bond proceeds and grant funds. The interest rates on secure investments continue to be at or
near historic lows and long-term investments required by the Agency's financing model in the Clean Water
SRF and the Drinking Water SRF may subject those programs to additional investment interest rate risk.
Lower investment interest rates also reduce the Agency's loan capacity, the dollars available to fund new
loans, while maintaining the same rate of loan interest subsidy. The Agency also continues to monitor market
conditions for the economic feasibility of issuing refunding bonds.

Like other areas of the country, Rhode Island communities are experiencing budget shortfalls. The
impact of these economic conditions on the Agency's borrowers and their ability to continue to make timely
loan repayments is difficult to determine; however, the loans are secured predominantly by revenues from
essential water and sewer services. Some communities, particularly smaller communities, may generally be
more vulnerable to the effects of downturns in the economy. The Agency continues to monitor the financial
status of its borrowers as part of an overall loan portfolio monitoring process.

(CONTINUED)
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated potential subsequent events through October 27, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

The Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund closed 9 loans totaling $10,215,000 in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2015. '

(CONCLUDED)
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER

FINANCE AGENCY

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

This section contains the following:
Combining Fund Financial Statements for:

Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (WPCRF) — This fund is used to
account for amounts received and expended from the Federally Capitalized
SRF, Title VI of the Clean Water Act, along with amounts received and
expended from the 20% required state matching of federal funding.

Rhode Island Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (RIWPCRF) — This
Jund accounts for amounts received from state contributions and expended to
Jinance projects not meeting the requirements of federal programs. This
Jund also accounts for the activity of the Facility Plan Loan Program, the
Rhode Island Zero Interest Loan Fund, and the Sewer Tie-in Loan Fund.

Operating Fund — This fund is used to account for amounts received and
expended for the general and administrative costs not applicable to the other
Jfunds.

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) — This fund accounts for
amounts received and expended from the Federally Capitalized SRF, the Safe
Drinking Water Act of 1996, along with amounts received and expended
Jrom the required state matching of federal funding.

Municipal Road and Bridge Revolving Fund (MRBRF) — This fund accounts
Jor amounts received and expended to provide low-cost financial assistance
Jor road and bridge projects.

Schedule of Travel and Entertainment Expenses
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

SCHEDULE 3

Executive Director's attendance at 2013 EPA/SRF Workshop — Chelmsford, MA — September 24, 2013 — September

26, 2013:

Lodging @nd OTNer.........cccooiiirii et $ 400

Executive Director's attendance at C.I.F.A. SRF Workshop — Minneapolis, MN — November 2, 2013 — November 7,

2013:
ATITAIE .o st 449
Lodging @nd Other.........ccco i 1,164
Ol e 1613

Executive Director and Deputy Director/CFO's attendance at C.I.F.A. Federal Policy Conference — Washington, DC —

April 13, 2014 — April 15, 2014:

YN = 1= TR SO 197
Lodging and other.........c.cocovviv i, e 2,665
LI SRS 2,862

Executive Director and Deputy Director/CFO's attendance at EPA Workshop Conference — Chicago, IL — June 23,

2014 - June 25, 2014:

e ] = | U 2,841

SEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION.
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER

FINANCE AGENCY

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency's comprehensive annual financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information reveals about the government's
overall financial health.

The Statistical Schedules differ from other financial statement presentations because they
generally disclose more than one fiscal year and present non-accounting data such as social and
economic data and financial trends of the Agency.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Agency'’s financial performance and fiscal health have changed over time. 55- 56

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the Agency's ability to provide interim loans and general obligations. 57-58

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader access the affordability of

the Agency's current levels of outstanding debt and the Agency's ab/l/ty fo issue

additional debt in the future. 59-61
Operating Information

These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the

information in the Agency's financial report relates to the services the Agency

provides and the activities it performs. 62-63
Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the Agency's financial activities take
place. 64-66

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual financial
reports for the relevant year.




RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{doliar amounts in thousands)

Net Investment

Fiscal Year in Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted Total
2014 S 80 S 477,557 § 43,724 $ 521,361
2013 25 448,630 39,605 488,260
2012 30 425,024 34,696 459,750
2011 29 399,830 30,350 430,209
2010 37 358,370 25,892 384,299
2009 37 336,939 23,275 360,251
2008 46 329,259 22,114 351,419
2007 35 318,427 18,114 336,576
2006 43 303,586 14,560 318,189
2005 50 279,998 11,714 291,762
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Operating Operating Operating Grant Change in
Fiscal Year Revenues Expenses Income (Loss) Income Net Position
2014 S 36,652 S 37,260 S (608) S 33,709 S 33,101
2013 34,148 36,140 (1,992) 30,501 28,509
2012 37,608 35,251 2,357 27,564 29,921
2011 30,735 33,688 (2,953) 48,863 45,910
2010 33,727 32,034 1,693 22,356 24,049
2009 32,506 31,860 646 8,186 8,832
2008 33,741 29,802 3,939 10,904 14,843
2007 31,523 28,150 3,373 15,015 18,388
2006 29,439 26,943 2,496 23,931 26,427
2005 27,098 23,603 3,495 23,985 27,480
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Operating Revenue Components
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Interest Grant Loan and Other
Investment Income - Income - Service Origination Total Operating
Fiscal Year Income Loans Operating Fees Revenues

2014 $ 4,216 $ 23,738 $ 3,169 $ 4,512 $ 1,017 S 36,652
2013 2,783 21,885 3,574 4,159 1,748 34,149
2012 8,970 20,243 3,094 3,792 1,509 37,608
2011 5,819 18,033 2,496 3,535 852 30,735
2010 10,391 16,881 2,248 3,386 821 33,727
2009 9,630 16,364 2,428 3,332 752 32,506
2008 12,377 15,371 2,176 3,144 673 33,741
2007 10,973 14,875 2,123 2,934 618 31,523
2006 9,825 13,945 2,478 2,628 563 29,439
2005 9,447 12,636 2,350 2,149 516 27,098
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

LOAN PAYOR / BORROWER

Ten Largest Payors/Borrowers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Fy 2014
RANK

% OF
REVENUE

Narragansett Bay Commission
City of Newport

City of Pawtucket

City of Warwick

Providence Water Supply Board
City of East Providence

RI Airport Corporation

Town of Bristol

City of Woonsocket

City of Cranston

*No Rank available

O 00N U W N

[y
o

**Borrower / Payor after June 30, 2005

32.44%
11.38%
8.74%
7.74%
6.29%
5.38%
2.86%
2.48%
2.18%
2.17%

FY 2005 % OF
RANK REVENUE
1 39.96%
9 2.02%
3 12.31%
2 2.02%
7 2.28%
18 0.47%
*N/R **0.00
10 1.95%
6 2.39%
12 1.29%
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Operating Expense Components
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{dollar amounts in thousands)

Loan
Interest Principal Consulting Administrative Professional Total Operating
Fiscal Year Expense Forgiveness Fees Expenses Expenses Expenses

2014 S 30,732 S 1,059 § 3,546 S 1,496 S 427 S 37,260
2013 28,153 894 3,574 3,128 391 36,140
2012 29,183 804 3,094 1,269 422 34,772
2011 29,448 163 2,496 1,224 357 33,688
2010 28,153 - 2,248 1,147 486 32,034
2009 27,651 - 2,428 1,214 567 31,860
2008 26,379 - 2,176 1,015 232 29,802
2007 24,889 - 2,123 964 174 28,150
2006 23,377 - 2,479 ' 919 168 26,943
2005 20,266 - 2,350 815 172 23,603
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Bond Issuances
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Number of Total Bond
Fiscal Year Bond Issuances Amount
2014 2 64,150
2013 4 192,500
2012 4 69,280
2011 2 50,545
2010 4 158,775
2009 0 0
2008 3 80,090
2007 2 62,930
2006 1 49,080
2005 2 112,585
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Debt Schedule

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollar amounts in thousands)

General Bond Premium/ Amount
Obligation (Discount) Net of Deferred Bonds
Fiscal Year Debt Amortization on Refunding Payable, Net
2014 774,122 S 63,500 S - S 837,622
2013 746,959 61,448 - 808,407
2012 706,985 36,763 (4,008) 739,740
2011 671,225 29,979 (4,585) 696,619
2010 652,710 28,213 (5,162) 675,761
2009 602,605 17,282 {669) 619,218
2008 631,340 18,320 (778) 648,882
2007 576,950 16,645 (887) 592,708
2006 535,850 14,345 (996) 549,199
2005 504,660 13,887 (1,105) 517,442

* Fiscal year 2013 was restated for the implementation of GASB 65, in fiscal year 2014.
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Fiscal
Year

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

RICWFA

Administrative

L O I - TV, B B S

Schedule of Full-Time Employees
By Program and Agency
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Clean Water
Program

PR R R R R R R R R

Drinking Water
Program

PR R R R R R R R R

RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Municipal
Road and Bridge
Program

Total
Agency

A OO0 NN
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

State of Rhode Island Demographics
Last Ten Years

Personal Per Capita Total
Income Personal Students,
Calendar (thousands Income Public Unemployment

Year Population of dollars) (dollars) Schools Rate
2013 1,051,511 $49,433,814 S 47,012 unavailable 9.5%
2012 1,050,304 48,184,495 45,877 141,564 10.3%
2011 1,051,302 46,881,303 44,621 142,575 11.2%
2010 1,052,567 45,267,567 42,999 143,674 11.7%
2009 1,053,209 43,470,708 41,257 143,591 10.9%
2008 1,053,502 44,143,873 41,842 146,228 7.7%
2007 1,055,009 43,125,881 40,788 149,925 5.2%
2006 1,060,196 41,257,610 38,809 151,690 5.1%
2005 1,064,989 38,992,878 36,513 154,863 5.1%
2004 1,071,414 38,118,500 35,473 157,362 5.2%

Indicator Source and Notes

Population Census. Estimates as of July 1, with exception of 2010, which is the Census

count.

Personal Income Bureau of Economic Analysis. Not adjusted for inflation.

Per Capita Personal Income Bureau of Economic Analysis. Not adjusted for inflation.

Total Students, Public Schools National Center for Education statistics. For academic year ending in the

year indicated.
Unemployment Rate Rl Department of Labor and Training
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Schedule of Total Net Debt, Rhode Island Resident Population,
and Debt per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
Fiscal Total Debt, Net Population* Debt, Net
Year (in thousands) (in thousands) (dollars)
2014 $ 837,622 1,052 S 796.59
2013 808,407 1,050 769.69
2012 739,740 1,051 703.64
2011 696,619 1,053 661.83
2010 675,761 1,053 641.62
2009 619,218 1,054 587.77
2008 648,882 1,055 615.05
2007 592,708 1,060 559.06
2006 549,199 1,065 515.69
2005 517,442 1,071 482.95

* Based on a calendar year ending December 31st.
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RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER FINANCE AGENCY

Employment Sectors - Rhode Island Establishment Employment
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(amounts in thousands)

2013 2004

*Employees Rank  Percentage *Employees Rank Percentage

Educational and Health Services 105 1 22% 93 1 19%
Trade, Transportation & Utilities 74 2 16% 80 2 16%
Government 60 3 13% 66 3 13%
Professional and Business Services 59 4 13% 54 5 11%
Leisure and Hospitality 53 5 11% 50 6 10%
Manufacturing 40 6 8% 57 4 12%
Financial Activities (including Real Estate) 32 7 7% 34 7 7%
Other Services ' 23 8 5% 23 8 5%
Construction 16 9 3% 21 9 4%
Information 9 10 2% 11 10 3%
Total 471 100% 489 100%

*Annual Average

Source: Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training. Based on a calendar year ending December 31st.

66



RHODE ISLAND CLEAN WATER

FINANCE AGENCY

REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS




%::% Cayer Caccia

Gerard R. Cayer
CPA, MST

Mark V. Caccia
CPA, MST

Donna T. Caccia
CPA, MST, CFP™
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency
Providence, Rhode Island

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Rhode
Island Clean Water Finance Agency, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Rhode [sland
Clean Water Finance Agency'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was fér the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of

“this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Rhode Island Clean Water Finance
Agency’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 27, 2014 Cay«\. Coccra, LLP
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